





BTOP Sustainable Broadband Adoption
Community Anchor Institution Detail Template

Please complete the Anchor Institution Details worksheet by providing information or
Community Anchor Institutions that will be directly involved in or benefit from the pr¢
project. Add rows as necessary. All community anchor institutions should be given a
specified list. A Community Anchor Institution is considered a minority-serving institu
post-secondary educational institution with enrollment of minority students exceedin
of its total enrollment. The "Role" column only requires a word or two, or a short phr
detailed explanation. A detailed explanation of the role of project partners and comn
institutions should be provided in the essay portions of the application.

The data provided via this template will be subject to automated processing. Applic
therefore required to provide this attachment as an Excel file, and not to convert it 1
to submitting a copy of their application on an appropriate electronic medium, such
CD-ROM, or flash drive. Additionally, applicants should not modify the format of th
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Title:
Easy Grants ID:

BTOP SBA Community Anchor Institutions Detail Template

Apalachee Ridge Technology Learning Center Broadband Initiative

6509 |

Facility Name Organization Address Line 1 City State Zip Facility Type Minority Se_?;?f Institution Project Role

Cobkk Middle School Leon County Schools 915 Hilcrest Tallahassee FL 32308 School (k-12) NfA Digital Harmory

Deerlake Middle School Leon County Schools 9902 Deerlake West Tallahassee FL 32312 School (k-12) N/A Digital Harmony

Fairview Middle School Leon County Schools 3415 Zillah Rd Tallahassee FL 32305 School (k-12) N/A Digital Harmony

Griffin Middle School Leon County Schools 200 Alabama St Tallahassee FL 32304 School (k-12) NSA Digital Harmony

Nims Middle School Leon County Schools 723 W. Orange Avenue Tallahassee FL 32310 School (k-12) N/A Digital Harmony

Raa Middle School Leon County Schools 401 W. Tharpe St Tallahassee FL 32303 School (k-12) N/A Digital Harmony

Switt Creek Middle School Leon County Schools 2100 Pedrick Rd Tallahassee FL 32317 School (k-12) N/A Digital Harmony

Tallahassee Community Tallahassee Community College Digital Harmony

College 444 Appleyard Dr Tallahassee FL 32304| Community College N/A

Orange Avenue Complex Tallahassee Housing Authority Apalachee Ridge Technology
850 Canton Circle Tallahassee FL 32310 Public Housing N/A Center

Florida State University Florida State University Other Institution of Digital Harmory
600 W, College Ave Tallahassee FL 32306 Higher Education N/A

Lutheran Social Services Lutheran Social Services Other Community Digital Harmony
606 W. 4th Ave Tallahassee FL 32303 Support Organization N/A

TalTech Alliance TalTech Alliance Other Community Digital Harmony
1700 N. Monroe Tallahassee FL 32303 Support Organization N/A

Comcast Comcast Other Community Digital Harmony
3760 Hartsfield Rd Tallahassee FL 32303| Support Organization N/A

Florida A&M University Florida A&M University Other Institution of Historically Black College|Digital Harmony
1601 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd  |Tallahassee FL 32307 Higher Education or University

Montford Middle School Leon County Schools 5789 Pimlico Dr Tallahassee FL 32309 School (k-12) NfA Digital Harmory







TEAM RESUMES

Carrie Blanchard

850-891-2000 iworki

EDUCATION

2004-2010

Ph.D., Askew School of Public Administration and Policy

Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida

Specialization: Public Policy/Economic Development Policy

Dissertation topic: County Level Decision-Making in the State of Florida and the Wal-Mart
Corporation

2004
Master of Public Administration, School of Business
University of Miami, Miami, Florida

2002

Bachelor of Business Administration, School of Business
Double Major Business Law and Political Science
University of Miami, Miami, Florida

2001
Study Abroad Summer Program in History, Government and Politics
University of Oxford, England

WORK EXPERIENCE

2008-Present
Chief of Staff, Office of Mayor John R. Marks, III
City of Tallahassee

e Supervises Mayor’s Office activities and staff, including Community Affairs, Internal
Operations and Administrative positions



e Coordinates intergovernmental efforts between the City and the County, State and
Federal governments

¢  Works with City Departments to develop and prioritize policy and appropriations
initiatives

¢ Responsible for keeping Mayor apprised of legislation and political activity that impacts
the City of Tallahassee; recommends legislative strategy and coordinates with contractual
lobbyists

¢ Handles the Request for Proposals (RFP) and serves as Committee Chair for State and
Federal lobbying contracts

¢ Serves as Mayor’s American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) coordinator,
including tracking grant opportunities, award notifications and assisting in writing ARRA
applications

e Liaison to five Sister Cities governments in St. Maarten, Netherlands Antilles; Krasnodar,
Russia; Ramat-Hasharon, Israel; Konongo-Odumasi, Ghana; and Sligo, Ireland

¢ Develops and presents agenda items for City Commission meetings on behalf of the
Mayor’s Office

e Coordinates regionalism efforts in the eight-county Big Bend Region of Florida

2005-2007
Aide to Mayor John R. Marks, 111
City of Tallahassee

¢ Responsible for constituent services for the Mayor’s Office; liaison with City
Departments for issue resolution

¢ Approved and coordinated Proclamation requests

¢ Handled citizen appointments to City Advisory Boards

e Coordinated the Mayor’s schedule, special events, and programs including City That
Reads, Council on Culture and Arts, Tourist Development Council, 10-year Plan to End
Chronic Homelessness, Florida League of Cities and U.S. Conference of Mayors

e Advanced communications including, speech writing, press releases, technical letters

2004-2005
Research Assistant
Florida Public Affairs Center/Florida State University

e Collecting Emergency Management data from local governments across the state of
Florida after severe hurricane activity in 2004

s Participated in training scenarios to test local emergency response capacity and
continuing of operations plans

¢ Contributed academic writing and research to emergency management conference papers



RELATED EXPERIENCE

2007-2008
Instructor
Florida State University
e Taught four sections of Junior/Senior level undergraduate courses in Public
Administration at Florida State University, including Local Government Administration
and Introduction to Public Administration

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Leon County Research and Development Authority
Member, Board of Governors, 2008-Present
Treasurer, 2009

Chamber of Commerce Professional Women’s Forum
Member, Board of Directors, 2008- Present

Friends of the LeRoy Collins L.eon County Public Library
Member, Board of Directors, 2007-Present

Secretary, 2008

Vice President, 2009

American Society for Public Administration
Member, 2005- Present
Board of Directors, 2008-2009

Donald C. Del oach

EDUCATION: Bachelor of Science Degree: Management Information Systems (1981)
Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida



GENERAL BACKGROUND:

WORK EXPERIENCE:
1981-Present

Master of Public Administration (1994)
Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida

Certified Chief Information Officer (2007)
Florida Institute of Government

28 years experience in computer industry (18 years of management)

Worked on numerous projects involving systems
consulting/application design and development, system selection and
implementation

Project and application management

Ability to Achieve Consensus on Difficult issues

Excellent communication skills

Skilled in determining priorities and developing solutions

Broad background in analyzing, planning strategies, and establishing
objectives

Responsible for providing 100% client satisfaction

Ability to make critical decisions: problem solver/decision maker
Coordinate development staffforoject schedules/managing/staffing
Work well under deadlines/time management abilities

Staff performance evaluations/personnel functions

Strong work ethic/committed to excellence

Ability to create budgets

City of Tallahassee, Tallahassee, Florida
Chief Information Systems Officer (1998- Present)

Highly responsible managerial work in directing all functions of IT
Supervises, directs, plans, coordinates, and instructs within T
Directs preparation of the budget / 18 million for IT

Participates on a variety of boards and committees

Develops IT policy and Strategic Plans for technology deployment
Hires, Fires, and Transfers responsibility

Customer Service Focused

Utility Information Systems Administrator (1997 - 1998)

Responsible for Citywide GIS Implementation

Responsible for Citywide CIS System

Utility Services Automation Consultant

Focus on Customer Service

Participates, Develops, Coordinates Information Systems Strategic
Planning

Prepares Policies and Executive Reports

Develops Cost Benefit Analysis to support Business Decisions



ACHIEVEMENTS:

Administers GIS and one half of Applications Systems Divisions
Budgets
Charged with keeping good working relationships with Utility Services

Project Manager (1996 - 1997)

Liaison between 1SS and Utility Service Managers
Responsible for completion of projects on time within budget
Motivate and direct staff/coach

Focus on customer service

Negotiate contracts/Implement Projects

New Technology Manager (1994 - 1995)

Responsible for customer support, research, and new product
development

Implemented system acquisition standards in City of Tallahassee
Manage application development projects

Determine user requirements through Executive interviews

Train and motivate staff/develop standards and goals/staff
performance evaluations

Analyst/Project Leader (1985 - 1994)

Primarily responsible for designing/implementing customer based
applications

Provided extensive direct telephone support for City based
applications

Involved in installing systems and training clients

Electronic Data Systems, Dallas, Texas
Programmer/Analyst (1983 - 1984)

Key design analyst for turnkey applications and distribution
applications
Design analyst for customer applications

Auditor General's Office, State of Florida
Programmer/Analyst (1981 - 1983)

Maintenance of COBOL applications

Has been asked to perform increasingly high profile, high-risk
assignments



+ Named by Computer World Magazine as a “Premier 100" CIO for
2007

o Designated a Certified Chief Information Officer by the Florida
Institute of Government 2007

o Received Certified Public Manager (CPM) designation from Florida
State University

o Public Technology Institute; Board of Director 2006-2009

o Florida Local Government Information Systems Association member
and Past President 2002 — 2004

o Member of Board of Directors for the Florida Government Technology

Conference

Negotiated City-wide Customer Inquiry Tracking System contract

Negotiated City's Oracle license

Negotiated Fourteen Million dollar ERP contract for City

Presented Incident Response Policy to Florida Certified Public

Technology Managers Certification

COMPUTER SKILLS: Fluent Application Development and Systems Analysis
Experience In: COBOL, SQL, 4GL’S, INFORMIX, Oracle, Microsoft Access, Relational Databases,
Hierarchical Databases, Client Server Methodology, Browser Based Applications, TCP/IP Networks,
Project Management, Strategic Planning













(GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As indicated previously, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets for the current and prior year.

Table 1
Statement of Net Assets
As of September 30
(In millions)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Assets
Current and other assets $ 2253 % 2226 $ 6896 % 7810 % 9149 $ 1,003.6
Capital assets 947.0 909.2 1,313.6 1,248.1 2,260.6 2,1573

Total Assets 1,172.3 1,131.8 2,003.2 2,029.1 3,1755 3,160.9
Liabilities
Current and other hiabilities 59.8 61.5 219.6 236.3 2794 2978
Long-term debt outstanding 111.9 113.1 759.2 797.3 871.1 9104

Total Liabilities 171.7 174.6 978.8 1,033.6 1,150.5 1,208.2
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets,
net ofrelated debt 856.9 814 .4 618.2 629.0 14751 1,443 .4
Restricted 23.7 19.4 1438 124.0 167.5 143 4
Unrestricted 120.0 123 .4 2624 242.5 3824 365.9

Total Net Assets $ 1,0006 §% 9572 § 1,0244 § 9955 % 20250 % 1,952.7

As of September 30, 2009, assets of the City exceeded its liabilities by $2.02 billion. The largest portion of the
City’s net assets, $1.47 billion or 72.8 percent, reflects its substantial investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
equipment, etc.), less the related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to residents; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. In addition, a portion
of the City’s net assets, $167.9 million or 8.3 percent, represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets, $382.4 million or 18.9 percent is
available to meet the ongoing obligations of the City. As of September 30, 2009, the City is able to report positive
balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as its separate governmental
and business-type activities.

During the year the City’s total assets increased by approximately $14.6 million and the City’s liabilities decreased

by approximately $57.7 million. For more detailed information sec the Statement of Net Assets on pages 26 and 27
of the financial statements.
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The following table summarizes the changes in net assets for the current and prior year.

Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General revenues
Property Taxes
Public Service Taxes
Grants and Contributions
Net Investment Revenue
Other Revenues

Total Revenues

Expenses
General Government
Public Safety
Transportation
Cultural and Recreation
Depreciation on Infrastructure
Other Primary Government
Electric
Gas
Sewer
Water
Airport
StarMetro
Solid Waste
Golf
Stormwater Management
Fire Services

Total Expenses

Excess (Deficiency) before transfers

Transfers

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

Table 2

Changes in Net Assets

(in millions)

Governmental Business
Activities Activities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
$13.5 $14.0 $574.5 $572.7 $588.0 $586.7
8.0 9.5 42 34 12.2 129
724 0.7 126 7.2 85.0 7.9
34.0 336 -- - 34.0 336
22.8 2211 -- -- 22.8 221
233 250 -- - 233 25.0
9.0 52 15.1 6.8 24.1 12.0
6.1 44 -- (1.5) 6.1 29
189.1 114.5 606 .4 588.6 795.5 703.1
224; 207 -- - 22:2 20.7
53.8 544 -- - 538 544
23.2 233 -- - 232 233
20.7 19.5 -- - 20.7 19.5
26.6 24.0 -- - 26.6 24.0
25.1 252 -- - 25.1 252
-- - 348.0 3463 348.0 3463
- - 426 516 426 516
- - 395 378 395 378
- - 248 21.1 248 21.1
- - 17.0 16.3 17.0 16.3
- - 18.0 18.4 18.0 18.4
-- - 20.1 20.6 20.1 20.6
. e 14 13 14 1.3
-- - 12.1 10.6 12.1 10.6
- - 28.1 27.6 28.1 27.6
171.6 167.1 551.6 551.6 723.2 718.7
17.5 (52.6) 54.8 37.0 723 (15.6)
259 21.5 (25.9) (21.5) - -
$43.4 ($31.1) $28.9 $15.5 $72.3 ($15.6)
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Expenditures

Expenditures and transfers out also decreased by $1.4 million between the original and final budgets. As indicated
above this was due to the City Commission amending the budget to reflect the downturn in revenues due to the
economic slowdown and its impact on the City.

In addition, changes to the budgets between functions occurred between the budget for transfers, which increased
by $3.4 million, and various other expense categories that decreased to fund projects. Project priorities change
during the year based on needs, assessments, availability of grant funding or other issues that impact the start or
completion of projects or their cost.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities, net of depreciation, as of
September 30, 2009, was approximately $2.3 billion. This represents a net increase of approximately $100 million,
or 4.6% over last year. See Note IV-D for more information about the City’s capital assets.

Table 4
Capital Assets
(net of depreciation, in millions)

Governmental Total %o
Actlvities Business-Type Activities Total Change
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009-2008
Land $ 351 % 351 $ 123 % 123 $ 474 3§ 474 0.0%
Buildings 66 67 67 68 133 135 0.7)
Equipment 9 9 393 409 402 418 (3.8)
Improvements

(Other than Building) 9 6 10 10 19 16 18.8
Infrastructure 458 422 463 441 921 863 6.7
Intangibles -- -- 50 50 50 50 0.0
Construction in Progress 54 54 208 147 262 201 304
Total $ 947 % 909 $ 1314 § 1,248 $ 2261 3§ 2,157 5.2%

Major capital acquisitions and improvements during the year included the following:
e Street construction, widening and expansion projects - $7.5 million
+ 800 MHz Digital Upgrade - $3.5 million
s  Smart metering program - $19.4 million
e  (as transmission and distribution infrastructure - $2.6 million
e Water transmission amd distribution infrastructure - $7.3 million
s Sewer collection, treatment, and disposal infrasture - $29.3 million

e FElectric generation, transmission and distribution infrastructure - $47.0 million

P









BASIC
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements provide a summary overview of the financial position
as well as the operating results of the City of Tallahassee. They also serve as an introduction to the more
detailed statements and schedules that follow in subsequent sections:

Government-wide Financial Statements
Governmental Funds Financial Statements
Proprietary Funds Financial Statements
Fiduciary Funds Financial Statements
Notes to Financial Statements



CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2009
(in thousands)
Primary Government Component Unit
Downtown
Governmental Business-type Improvement
Activities Activities Total Authority
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents...............ccccoooieiienen, 8 72212 % 195478 8 267690 $ 287
Securities Lending Collateral ... 9.954 26,942 36,896 40
Receivables:
Accrued Interest. ..., 279 857 1,136 1
Customers and Other..............ccooooiiii, 3,153 39,271 42,424 -
NOES. oo 147 6,671 6,818 -
Special Assessments 276 -- 276 -
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts............. {696) (3,086) (3,782) -
Due from Other Governments................occcooe. 5.335 6,603 11,938 -
Prepaid EXPEnSes. ..o -- 23,724 23,724 --
TN T TN covosasoosnossesan s8R 284 50,909 51,193 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted................ 72,210 128,267 200,477 -
Investments - Restricted......................coooi 12,475 191,582 204,057 -
Securities Lending Collateral - Restricted.............. 11,672 43,672 55344 -
Receivables - Restricted:
312 528 840 -
35 - 35 -
4,340 - 4,340 -
2,008 1,459 3,557 -
Total Current ASSets.. ... 194,086 712,877 906,963 328
Noncurrent Assets
Internal Balances.............cccoeeeeieeieeeeeee e 30,485 (30,485) - -
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs. ..., 730 7,238 7,968 -
Capital Assets
Land and Construction in Progress..................... 406,330 330,698 737,028 -
Other, Net of Accumulated Depreciation............ 540,704 082,905 1,523,609 -
Total Noncurrent ASSetS. 078,249 1,290,356 2,268,605 -
Total ASSetsunamnmiiamimnmaniaiis 8 1,172,335 § 2003233 § 3175568 § 328

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2009
(in thousands)

Primary Government Component Unit
Business- Downtown
Governmental type Improvement
Activities Activities Total Authority
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Obligations Under Securities Lending ................ $ 9,954 3 26,942 3 36,896 3 40
Accounts Payable.........c.cooovviinnnin. 7,322 40,285 47,607 8
Customer Contracts Payable..............cc.cocoeene -- 765 765 --
Utility Deposits Payable.........c.ccoovviiiinnnn. -- 20,001 20,001 --
Uneamned Revenue.... & 2,491 27 2,518 --
Compensated ADSENCES......c.oocoviiiiiiiiiii i 6,286 7,521 13,807 24
Accounts Payable - Restricted.............cccceeee. 4,550 23,435 27,985 --
Obligations Under Securities Lending - Restricted 11,672 43,672 55,344 o
Unearned Revenue - Restricted.......................... 290 -- 290 --
Bonds & Loans Payable - Current. 8,855 36,305 45,160 --
Total Current Liabilities........ccccvvcennnee 51,420 198,953 250,373 72
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated ADSENCES......c.oooveriiiiririi e 2,442 3,532 5,974 o
Customer Contracts Payable............cccocovevee -- 2,681 2,681 --
Claims Payable..........ccoooooeiiieieie e s 8,923 8,923 s
Net OPEB Obligation..........ccooveivicnncicnienene 5,897 5,510 11,407 8
Bonds & Loans Payable...........ccoooeiiiinenn. 109,205 749, 421 858,626 s
Unamortized Bond Premium ..............c.coovveenen. 2,714 11,715 14,429 --
Deferment of Loss on Early Retirement of Debt -- {1,968) (1,968) --
Total Noncurrent Liabilities.................. 120,258 779,814 900,072 8
Total Liabilities....ccccovovevecmsremnernesseessninns 171,678 978,767 1,150,445 80
NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt 856,883 618,177 1,475,060 --

Restrictad Forr . cnrmunnnmmms s v
Capital Projects.......cccooiviiiiic e 4,504 96,598 101,102 ca
Debt Service......oooovveeveeeicie e 12,215 47,248 59,463 --
Other PUTPOSES........ooooeviniieeenicee e 7,041 -- 7,041 --
Unirestricted. coesnaanvanmnnanmansanians 120,014 262,443 382,457 248
Total Net Assets 1,000,657 1,024,466 2,025,123 248
Total Liabilities and Net Assets............. $ 1,172,335 $ 2,003,233 $ 3,175,568 3 328

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009

Function/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General Government
Public Safety. ...
Transportation...........o.ooo e oo
Human Serviees.........coocoov oo
Economic Development...........coocoooiivii i
Physical ENVITonment..............o.oooooiiiiiiieee e
Culture and Recreation............ocooo oo,
Unallocated Depreciation on Infrastructure................
Interest on Long-Term Debt..........ooooiiiii

Total governmental activities........oiivniiiiiiinsnns

Business-type Activities:

GOlE s
Stormwater Management................cooooeee i
Fire Services. ..o

Total business-type activities.......ueressreirsesrarscas

Total primary government........cc.vaus esssssssssnses

Component Unit:
Downtown Improvement Authority.............o.oooeeeeeeenn.

(in thousands)
Program Revenues
Charges Operating

for Grants and Capital Grants
Expenses Services Contributions and Contributions
$ 22254 0§ 2,09 § 2,152 $ ==

53,819 4,156 420 93

23,193 2,330 32 72,062
3,984 770 694 --

10,575 o 3.877 34

5318 873 479 141

20,650 3,260 352 116
26,584 e e oz

5,205 e e o2

171,582 13,485 8,006 72,446
347,955 369,023 - -
42618 46,521 - -
39,515 48,061 -- --

24,764 26,230 = .

17,015 12,203 = 3,128

18,059 0,496 4,148 4.871

20,075 21,658 w -

1,389 1,070 w 49

12,098 18,417 -- 4,576

28,099 23,952 -- --

551,587 574,531 4,148 12,624

§ 723169 § 5880l % 12,154 8 85,070

b 320 % - % - $ -

General Revenues:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes............oocoeeeiiiiiiiiien e,
Py G S T e AR S .. i i A . i B
Business HCanse taX. .. ..o e
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs...................
Net unrestricted investment earmings. ...
Net securities lending iNCOME. ..ottt
Net increase in fair value of investments.....................ooiiiiiii .,
S e i O e A e T P R
Nt T anS TS, .
Total general revenues and transfers.......................
Change INNet @SSeTS. .. ...t
BES V) FO  Loto] )1 G RV
Webassets s S e e mIbE T AN o s e SRR

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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General

Community
Redevelopment
Agency

Other

Governmental Funds

Electric

Gas

Sewer

Water

Airport

Stormwater
Man agement

Other
Enterprise Funds

Internal
Service Funds

FUNDS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The functions paid for by the general fund include police, protective inspection,
code enforcement, culture and recreation, general government, transportation, human
services, economic development, and physical environment.

Accounts for the general tax revenue collected on and the expenses incurred in the
redevelopment of properties in the community redevelopment area.

Detailed descriptions of these funds are provided on page 93.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned electric generation,
transmission, and distribution system.

Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned gas system.

Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City’s wastewater collection
and treatment system.

Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City’s water production and
distribution system.

Accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned regional airport.

Accounts for the operation, maintenance, and expansion of the City-owned stormwater
utility system.

Detailed descriptions of these funds are provided on page 98.

Detailed descriptions of these funds are provided on page 103.
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Pension Trust

Nuclear
Decommissioning

OPEB Trust

FUNDS

(continued)

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for retirement annuity
payments to City employees including both a Defined Benefit Plan and a
Defined Contribution Plan. The Defined Benefit Plan accounts for genecral
employees, police officers and fire fighters separately. The Defined
Contribution Plan covers all employees who elect to contribute a portion of their
salary to the plan.

Accounts for resources legally held in trust for Florida Power Corporation (FPC)
for the future decommissioning of the Crystal River Unit 3 Utility Plant (CR3
Plant).

Accounts for the accumulation of resources to be used for benefit payments for
retirees health care costs.
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ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents..........cccooovvniinennns
Securities Lending Collateral ............cceeeeeiiinnn.
Receivables:
Accrued Interest..........coooeeieveieiciieeee e
Customers and Other.

Special Assessments - Current..............cocoeuee..

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts............
Due From Other Governments...............cccoeevene..
Advances to Other Funds..............cccooveiiiiieeeen
IAVETEOLY: covsiimviiminiimm it i
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted................
Investments - Restricted.............ccooovveeeiiveceenne
Securities Lending Collateral - Restricted
Receivables - Restricted:

Accrued Interest Receivable...

O DL 1<) PP

Notes Receivable...........ccooeoivieiiiiiiiicicceen

Due from Other Governments.............c.c.coeee....
Total ASSeES..cor e ceeeecer e e e e e e

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Obligations Under Securities Lending .
Accounts and Retainage Payable...............c.ooee.
Unearned ReVENUE..........coocoevviviiiiniiiie e
Accounts and Retainage Payable - Restricted........
Obligations Under Securities Lending - Restricted
Due to Other Funds.........oooooiiiiiiii
Advances from Other Funds............cocoooiiinnn
Unearned Revenue - Restricted...........coooovenrneen.
Total Liabilities comesmaininamng

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:
Encumbrances...............
Advances to Other Funds.
Inventory...
PIOJECES v v i st iy wisis v
Notes Receivable..........ccooeiiviiiiiiiiciccee
Debt SEIVICE....ooiiiiveciecvie e
Unreserved, designated for:
General Fund - Deficiencies.............oocooooeeviennin.
Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:
Special Revenue Funds...........ccocovviiniininnene
Capital Project Funds.............ccooivviiiniccnnene.
Permanent Fund............
Total Fund Balances..........ccooecccinemecciienene.

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances............

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2009

(in thousands)

Community Other Total
Redevelopment Governmental Governmental
General Agency Funds Funds
$ 11,579 b - b 43,573 55,152
1,596 -- 6,006 7,602
53 -- 152 205
3,133 -- 15 3,148
-- -- 147 147
-- -- 276 276
(696) -- -- (696)
3,198 -- 2,137 5,335
2,882 -- -- 2,882
284 -- -- 284
189 8,784 63,237 72,210
-- -- 12,475 12,475
26 1,211 10,435 11,672
-- 39 273 312
-- -- 35 35
-- -- 4,340 4,340
-- -- 2,098 2,098
$ 22,244 3 10,034 3 145,199 177,477
$ 1,596 b - b 6,000 7,602
4,107 -- 1,526 5,633
1,557 -- 851 2,408
189 81 4,280 4,550
26 1,211 10,435 11,672
65 -- -- 65
5,767 -- 3,028 8,795
-- -- 290 290
13,307 1,292 26,416 41,015
483 326 13,553 14,362
2,882 -- -- 2,882
284 -- -- 284
-- 8,225 536,677 64,902
-- -- 4,487 4,487
-- -- 12,215 12,215
5,288 -- -- 5,288
-- 191 5,622 5,813
-- -- 19,931 19,931
-- -- 6,298 6,298
8,937 8,742 118,783 136,462
$ 22,244 3 10,034 3 145,199 177,477

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

w3






CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Governmental Funds

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009

(in thousands)

Community Other
Redevelopment Governmental
General Fund Agency Funds Total
Revenues:
e 8 54706 $ 2,120 = § 56,835
Licenses and Permits................. e 2,673 -- 8,399 11,072
Intergovernmental Revenues...............c.cooee 14,963 2,436 21,493 38.892
Charges for Services.........ccooovvvivivic e Far22 -- 61 7,783
Fines and Forfeitures..........ccocoeviviiiiiceciie s 1,140 -- 221 1,361
Net Investment Earmings............c.ccooeeeiieiinennn, 708 230 3,156 4,094
Securities Lending Income............cooeviieiienennn. 55 18 247 320
Net Increase in the Fair Value of Investments........ 304 2297 2,748 3,279
Miscellaneous Revenues...........c.cooe e 11,964 13 532 12,509
Total ReVemues.........ccooe i e 94,235 5,053 36,857 136,145
Expenditures:
Current:
General GOVErnMENt.............ccooee e 22,339 - 7,756 30,005
PubligsSafetyi e 47,002 -- 4,108 51,110
Transportation.........ccocoeee i 13,791 - 16,862 30,653
Hiiais S e R ATES o smemnves v et 3,050 - 535 3,585
Economic Environment..............cccooovvieeiiiininnn, 1,984 4.674 4,531 11,189
Physical Environment................cocoeoveveeieee e, 3,259 -- 871 4,130
Cultural and Recreation...........c..occooeveieeecieenn 17,069 -- 2,357 19,426
Securities Lending Expense:
Interest....coooovii e 16 5 71 92
Agent Fees.....oooiiiii 8 3 36 47
Debt Service:
Principal Retired..........cooo oo -- -- 4,750 4,750
Interest and Fiscal Charges..........c.cooocoiiiiie 414 3 4,404 4,821
Total Expenditures............cccoooveviiveiee e 108,932 4,685 46,281 159 898
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures....... {14,697) 368 (9,424) {23,753)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers I 36,162 -- 17,519 53,081
Transfers Out..... e e e {19,800} -- (7,814 27,614)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets...........c....... - - -- --
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)............ 16,362 -- 9,705 26,067
Net Change in Fund Balances............c.oooeovviinien. 1,665 368 281 2.314
Fund Balances - October 1., T2 8,374 118,502 134,148
Fund Balances - September 30...........cccoooev i 8,937 § 8.742 118,783 § 136,462

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORID A
RECONCILIATION OF REVENUES , EXPENDIT URES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THESTATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the fiscal year ended S eptember 30, 2009
(in thousands)

Net Changes in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 5 2,314

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Asgsets are
different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However,

in the Statement of Activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

capital outlay s exceeded depreciation in the current period. 37,978

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. The net revenue of certain internal
services funds is rep orted with governmental activities. 261

Repayment of bond principal is reported as an expenditure in governmental

funds. For the city as a whole, however, the principal payments reduce

the liability in the Statement of Net Assets and does not result in an expense

in the Statement of Activities. 4,750

The change in the unfunded Net OPEB Obligation which ig included in
the Statement of Activities does not require the uge of current financial
resources and therefore is not reported as an exp enditure in governmental funds. (2,434)

The amortization of bond issue costs and bond premiums which is included

in the Statement of Activities does not require the use of current financial

resources and therefore is not reported as an exp enditure in governmental funds. 221
The net change in compensated absences which ig reported in the Statement of

Activities doesg not require the use of current financial resources and therefore
is not rep orted as an exp enditure in governmental funds. 342

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 43,432

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Proprietary Funds
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009
(in thousands)
Enterprise Funds
Other Tatal
Stormwater Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Electric Gas Sewer ‘Water Airport Management Funds Funds Service Funds
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Residential Sales........ccooooviiiniiciinicsee e § 153911 % 14383 § 24077 % 12,525 & - 3 7,041 § 18,092 § 230,029 $ =
Commercial and Industrial Sales.........ccoocceeininn 187,286 23,980 16,430 7,813 - 10,864 19,489 265,862 --
Public Street and Highway Lighting.. 4,483 -- - -- -- - -- 4,483 --
Sales for Resale... 6.836 - - - - - -- 6,836 -
Surcharge......... 1,999 137 833 1,436 - - -- 4,425 --
Tapping Fees..........cooevennnn. -- 9 144 378 -- -- -- 331 --
Landing and Tie Down Fees.........ocoovevviiivcen, -- -- -- - 1,429 -- -- 1,429 --
Late FOeR ..o 1217 138 - 20 - - -- 1,445 --
Initiating SerVICE. ...ocoiiieiie e 939 116 - 493 - - -- 1,548 --
REital i s i mimiiigi 521 -- - 523 9,013 - -- 10,057 --
Cut-ing and Cut-fees..........cooov oo 1,429 37 - 125 - - -- 1,591 --
County GOvernment...........cocceevveienncre e - - - - - - 6,790 6,790
Recyclable Sales........ccooovoiiiniieecees -- -- -- - -- -- 816 816 --
Recreation Fees..........coooviviiinninccic e -- -- -- - -- -- 921 921 --
Transportation Fees..........ocooirncienncneccee, - - -- - - - 4,175 4,175 -
L 1T T 6,044 480 3,420 1,358 1,761 512 1,224 14,799 315,151
Total Operating Revenues........c...coovveererrereceennes 364,665 39,280 44,924 24,741 12,203 18,417 51,507 555,737 315,151
Operating Expenses:
Perzonmiel SErvICes.......coi e 22,963 2,104 11,697 5,322 4,250 3,467 35,301 87,104 32,744
Fossil Fuel...coooooie e 212,677 -- - -- - - -- 212,677 --
Power Purchased. ... 14,093 -- - -- - - -- 14,093 --
Gas Purchaged............ -- 26,743 - -- -- - -- 26,743 --
Contractual Services.......... 32,212 2,805 15,753 11,257 4,236 5,208 25,523 96,994 255,901
Materials and Supplies...... 4,344 118 2,300 801 205 265 2,986 11,017 7,638
Other EXPEIISeS....cuoioiieeeeeeeirieiee e 5,014 732 615 1,094 459 203 630 8,747 7,660
L = T 33,290 1,586 6,196 3,104 3,708 881 2,730 51,515 7,802
AMOTHZATOTL ... 313 33 132 18 101 -- -- 397 --
Total Operating ExXpenses.........c.cccooeoviiennenennn. 324,906 34,119 36,693 21,596 12,959 12,024 67,190 509,487 311,745
Operating Income (LOSS)......oooiinieiiiieiieeae $ 39,759 § 3,161 § 8,231 § 3145 § (736) § 6393 § (15683) § 46250 § 3,406

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009
(in thousands)
Enterprige Funds
Other Total
Stormwater Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Electric Gas Sewer Water Airport Management Funds Funds Service Funds
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Net Investment Earmingg. ........coooocevieiiniscece e $ 2947 % %0 % 1,333 § 138 §$ 250 % 849 % 116 §$ 5723 % 1,736
Net Increage in the Fair Value of Investments.............. 4,196 193 685 169 330 1,466 208 7,247 1,513
Securities Lending;
TICOMI . ..ttt 229 7 104 11 19 67 9 446 134
Interest Expense.... @ (67) (2) (30) 3) (6) (20 3) (131) {41)
Agent Fees........ (32) (1) (15) (2 2) @ (1) (62) (17)
CIrant REVETIIES. . ccovmwain sunseasmvvmis sossamasmsss i smvaiaves - - - - -- - 4,148 4,148 --
Other REVENUES. ..o 1,319 31 3,137 1,489 -- - 940 6,916 1,108
Interest EXPENSE. ...o.coovveiiieeceieieeee s (14,695) (1,499) (2,381) (1,220) (246) - (147) (20,388) (729
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets.........cooooioiiiine -- - -- - (24) -- 729 705 (44
CHHET B TSR v s svimminarins svsammmssses duss svwosivnsn s (7,239) (379) (374) (2,513) (3.877) (29) -- (14,631) (696)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses).......... (13.362) {1,560) 2,039 (1,931) (3,356) 2,324 3,999 (10,027) 2,964
Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions
and Operating Transfers.........cocooooiniiinnn, 26,397 3,601 10,290 1,214 (4,312) 8,717 (9,684) 36,223 6,370
Capital Contributions and Transfers:
Capital Contributions. .......coooovririeiire s -- - - -- 3,128 4,576 4,920 12,624 --
Trangfers In.... 113 -- - -- -- - 10,782 10,895 54
Transferdi @it e an s ssanEnraism (22,803) (2,353) (2.372) (6,036) (949) (317) (350) (35,402) (1,614)
Total Capital Contributions and Transfers............ (22,692) (2,353) (2.372) (6,036) 2,179 4,059 15,352 (11,883) (1,560)
Change in Net ASSets......cocoooonviienieniseinneeineneas 3,705 1,248 7,918 (4,842) (2,133) 12,776 5,668 24,340 4,810
Net Assets - October 1 363,956 28,502 155,957 94,964 91,505 163,670 46,865 83,757
Net Assets - September 30 § 367661 § 29,750 & 163,875 § 90,122 § 89,372 % 176446 & 52,533 $ 88,567
Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund
activities to enterprise fUNAS.. ... 4,593
Change in net assets of business-type achivities. ... 3 28,933

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009
(in thousands)

Enterprise Funds
Other Tatal
Stormwater Enterprise Enterprise Intemnal
Electric Gas Sewer Water Airport Management Funds Funds Service Funds
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents $  (21,382) % (2,302 $ 4370 $ (17,589 $ (2314 $ 713 8 3,758 $ (28325 % 4,163
Cash and Cash Equivalents - October 1., 183,593 9,751 22,112 24,112 15,071 49,554 6,547 310,740 54,376
Cash and Cash Equivalents - September 30.........cccocovviiiiiinnn. $ 162,211  $ 7449 § 26482 § 6523 % 12,757 § 56,688 % 10,305 $ 282415 % 58,539
Classified As: -
BT B (e 0 G R SRR e $ 81,42 % 2193 § 872 % 2,068 % 3,080 % 56,688 % 8056 $§ 153999 % 58,539
Restricted Assets 81,169 5,256 25,610 4455 9,677 -- 2,100 128,267 --
§ 162211 % 7449 § 26482 % 6523 % 12,757 % 56,688 % 10,156 $ 282266 % 58,539
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by (Used for)
Operating Activities:
Operaline I COIE L OSSN e sevmmmmrens resmsmmsnss soomsmsan s suepsissasys 3 39,759 % 5161 § 8231 % 3145 % (756) % 6393 § (15683 $§ 46250 3 3,406
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
DEPTOCIALION: cvvvicis sovavsvvisianivsasinsssa soms svivaasiasrssimssossie s iveamsis s svsaiosis 33,290 1,586 6,196 3104 3,708 881 2,750 51,515 7.802
AmortiZabion: o nanmnna e 313 33 132 18 101 - - 597 -
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts..........cocoooeiiive e 417 (€] (9%) (65) 30 (25) 68 328 --
Net OPEB Obligation... 576 60 282 130 102 122 1,059 2,331 748
OEBET .ottt et 475 23 874 926 (3,877) -- - (1,579) -
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable. ... 18,493 329 (166) 62 (253) 652 (2,181) 16,936 1,444
Decrease in Other Accounts Receivable.......cooocoioiiii - - - - - - - - 312
(Increase) Decrease in INVENLOTY ..o i (2,055) (28) 55 - -- - (103) (2,131) (1,099)
(Increase) Decrease in Due From Other Funds.........c..ocoooiviee v, (12,552) - - - -- - -- (12,552) --
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable...........ccocv e, 801 (1,415) (1,122) (1,091) (37 (321) 7.218 4,033 (35,667)
Decrease in Due To Other Funds...........cooooeeeiiee e - - - - - - - - 12,552
Increase in Prepaid EXPENSES..........o.cvvvvieniceiiniiiece e - - - - -- - 234 (234) 28,424
Increase in loans to other funds..............coooo oo - - - - - - - - 4,327
Increase in Utility Deposits Payable..........ccocooiiiniiii 770 8 - 21) - - - 757 -
Increase (Decrease) in Compensated ADSENCES......oovveviiicieie i 36 (99) (271) 120 (18) (18) (120 (370) (led)
Increase in Prepaid Fees Credit.. - - -- - (165) - -- (165) --
Decrease in Insurance DepositS.......covoe e - - -- - - - - -- 81
Total AdJUSHTIENES. ..o 40,564 493 5,887 3,183 409 1,291 8457 59,466 18,760
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating
ACHVILIES. ..oooveie ettt ettt ettt e ea vt r et $ 80,323 % 5654 § 14,118 $ 6328 § (1,165) $ 7684  § (7.226) $ 105,716  $ 22,166

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.






ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employver......c.cocooievvenennn.
Plan Members.....................
Miscellaneous....................

Total Contributions

Investment Income

From Investment Activities:
Unrealized Depreciation
In Fair Value of Investments
Titerest. oo
Dividends.........ccooovviveiinnnne
Commission Recapture Income
Total Investment Income
Less Investment Expenses:
Investment Management Fees

Interest Expenses

Net Income from Investing Activities

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Fiduciary Funds

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009

From Securities Lending Activities:

Securities Lending Income

Lesg Securities Lending Exp enses:

Interest Expenses

Investment Management Fees..............ccocieininnnne

Net Income from Securities Lending Activities

Total Net Investment Income

Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - October 1

Net Assets - September 30

Total Additions..............

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits
Refunds of Contributions
Administrative Expense

Total Deductions............

(in thousands)

Nuclear
Decommissioning

Pension Trust OPEB Trust Private-Purpose
Fund Fund Trust Fund

8 17,373 % 3,123 $ -

7,835 - --

76 -- --

24984 3,123 --

(32,336) - --

7,249 37 56

7,751 -- --

(17,336) 37 56

2,795 -- --

193 -- --

(20,324) 37 56

602 4 4

36 1 1

s 93 1 1

..... 453 2 2

(19.871) 39 58

5,113 3,162 58

43,813 1,585 --

432 -- --

940 -- --

45,185 1,585 --

(40,072) 1,577 58

1,051,486 1,155 6,675

$ 1,011,414 3 2,732 3 6,733

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This Summary of Significant Accounting Policies is presented to assist the reader in interpreting the financial
statements. The policies are considered essential and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements. The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applicable to governmental units. This report, the accounting systems and classification of accounts conform to
standards of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

A. REPORTING ENTITY

The City is a political subdivision of the State of Florida, located in Leon County in the center of the Florida
Panhandle. It is approximately 102 square miles in area. It is the capital of Florida, the county seat, and the only
incorporated municipality in Leon County. The City was incorporated in 1825 following a decision by the legislature
to locate the capital of the new Florida Territory midway between the population centers of St. Augustine and
Pensacola.

In the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 8374, Laws of Florida, Special Acts 1919, the City was granted a new City
Charter by the State Legislature authorizing a Commission-Manager form of government. In the original charter,
the five City Commissioners were elected at large for four-year terms and each year, the Commissioners selected
the Mayor for a one-year term to act as the official representative for the City. Tallahassee voters approved a
charter change in November 1996 calling for a separately elected Mayor, thereby changing the structure of the
Tallahassee City Commission. The first elected Mayor was elected in February 1997 for a four-year term. The
clected Mayor has powers commensurate with the other four members of the City Commission; however, he 1s able
to serve as an ongoing contact for matters involving other governmental or institutional organizations, including the
state legislature, county government, and local universities.

The City provides a full range of municipal services to its citizens. These services include public safety (police and
fire), construction and maintenance of streets and sidewalks, stormwater management, recreation, public
improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operates
ten enterprise funds which include a regional airport, a bus system, a golf course, a solid waste collection system,
four utilities (an electric generation transmission and distribution system, a natural gas distribution system, a water
production and distribution system, and a sewage collection and treatment system), fire services, and a stormwater
system.

In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component units for which the
City may or may not be financially accountable and, as such, be includable within the City’s financial statements.
The City (the primary government) is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s
governing board and (1) it is able to impose it’s will on the organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization
to provide specific financial benefit to or impose specific financial burden on the City. Additionally, the primary
government is required to consider other organizations for which exclusion of the nature and significance of their
relationship with the City would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

w6 =



CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

The accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance
part of the City’s operation. The discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the
government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.

BrenpED CompoNenT UNIT

Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) - The Tallahassee Community Redevelopment Agency and the CRA
Board were created in 1998. The board consists of the Mayor, the four City Commissioners and four of the County
Commissioners. Although legally separate, the CRA is blended in the City’s financial statements in accordance
with the criteria for blending set forth by GASB 14, as amended by GASB 39. The CRA has responsibility for two

specifically separate tax increment districts as described below.

. Greater Frenchtown/Southside Community Redevelopment Area (GFSCRA) - The City Commission adopted
the Greater Frenchtown/Southside Community Redevelopment Plan in June 2000. The GFSCRA consists
of three distinct geographical sections of over 1,450 acres of residential, commercial/retail and industrial
land uses, located within the greater Frenchtown and Southside neighborhoods.

. Downtown District Community Redevelopment Area (DDCRA) - The City Commission adopted the Down-
town Community Redevelopment Plan in June 2004. The DDCRA consists of approximately 440 acres
located in downtown and between the northern and southern portions of the Greater Frenchtown/South
Community Redevelopment Area.

DiscreTELY PRESENTED CompPoNENT UNIT

Downtown Improvement Authority- The Downtown Improvement Authority (DIA) is an agency created by the
Florida Legislature to regulate downtown growth. The City Commission appoints the governing board of the DIA.
The City can impose its will on the DIA by approving and/or modifying its budget. There are no separately issued
financial statements for the DIA. The DIA utilizes governmental fund accounting.

JoIiNT VENTURES EXCLUDED FROM THE REPORTING ENTITY:

¢  Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission
The Sunshine State Governmental Financing Commission (the “Commission’™) was created in November
1985, initially by the cities of Tallahassee and Orlando, Florida to operate and administer a loan program.
As of September 30, 2009, the Commission’s membership consists of the following governmental units:
City of Coral Gables, Florida; City of Coral Springs, Florida; City of Daytona Beach, Florida; City of Ft.
Lauderdale, Florida; City of Hollywood, Florida; City of Jacksonville, Florida; City of Lakeland, Florida;
City of Miami, Florida; City of Miami Beach, Florida; City of Orlando, Florida; City of St. Petersburg,
Florida; City of Tallahassee, Florida; City of Vero Beach, Florida; Miami-Dade County, Florida; Palm Beach
County, Florida; and Polk County, Florida. In addition, the City of West Palm Beach, Florida, participate in
the Commission’s programs as non-member participants. Other Florida local governments may in the
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

future become members or non-member participants including units of government such as special districts
or other qualifying public agencies. Each member government appoints a representative to the Commission.
These representatives elect a five-member board of directors to administer the loan program.

As a joint venture among the member governmental units, the Commission enables a limited number of
qualifying governments to participate in pooled debt financings with pricing and cost structures not normally
available to governmental entitics acting individually. Loan obligations from the Commission are reflected
as debt by the participating governmental units.

The City of Tallahassee has no obligation and minimal event risk associated with the Commission other than
the repayment of its loans from the Commission. Financial statements may be obtained from the Sunshine
State Governmental Financing Commission.

»  City of Tallahassce-I.eon County Blueprint 2000 Intergovernmental Agency
In October 2000, the City entered into an interlocal agreement with Leon County as authorized by Section
163.01(7) Florida Statutes. This agreement created the Blueprint 2000 Intergovernmental Agency to govern
the project management for the project planning and construction of a list of projects known as the Blueprint
2000 projects. The Board of County Commissioners and the City Commission constitute the Blueprint
2000 Intergovernmental Agency. The revenues to fund the projects under this agreement are the
collections of the local goverment infrastructure sales surtax, which began December 1, 2004. This tax was
extended pursuant to the provisions in Section 212.055, Florida Statutes, until December 31, 2019.

Periodically, the Agency provides construction management services to the City. For these services the
Agency and the City enter into Joint Participation Agreements (JPAs) whereby the City agrees to pay an
administrative fee of 3% to the Agency. During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, the City paid
nothing under these JPAs.

Current audited financial statements may be obtained from Blueprint 2000, 1311 Executive Center Dr.,
Suite 109, Tallahassce, Florida 32301.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements (i.c., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities in net
assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activitics,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those expenses that are clearly identifiable with a specific function
or scgment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operation or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprictary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues, expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported
in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereatter
to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they
are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability 18 incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments
receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the
government.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Community Redevelopment Agency Funds account for the general tax revenue collected and the
expenses incurred in the redevelopment of properties in the Community Redevelopment area.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Electric Fund accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned electric generation,
transmission, and distribution system.

The Gas Fund accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned gas system.
The Sewer Fund accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City’s wastewater system.

The Water Fund accounts for the assets, operation, and maintenance of the City’s water production and
distribution system.

The Airport Fund accounts for the assets, operation, and maintenance of the City-owned regional airport.

The Stormwater Fund accounts for the operation, maintenance, and expansion of the City-owned stormwater
utility system.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds account for various services provided to other departments of the government and to
other governments on a cost reimbursement basis. The services provided include an 800 megahertz
system, revenue collection, information systems services, accounting operations, central warehouse
operations, fleet management, employee relations operations, employee retirement plan’s administrative

operation, risk management operation, internal loans program, utility services functions, and wholesale
energy operations.

The private purpose trust fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for Florida Power
Corporation (FPC) for the future decommissioning of the Crystal River Unit 3 Utility Plant (CR3 Plant).
On October 1, 1999, the City sold its interest in the CR3 Plant to FPC and was released from any

decommissioning costs in excess of the amount held in trust. The plant’s decommissioning is anticipated
to begin in 2016.
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NOTE I (CONTINUED)

* The pension trust fund includes a Defined Benefit Plan and a Defined Contribution Plan. It is used to
account for the accumulation of resources to be used for retirement annuity payments to City employees.
The Defined Benefit Plan accounts for general employees, police officers, and fire fighters separately.
The Defined Contribution Plan covers all employees who elect to contribute a portion of their salary to the
plan.

The private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also
have the option of following subsequent private sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise
funds, subject to the same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges
provided, and fines and forfeitures, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds, and of the City’s
internal service funds, are charges to customers for sales and services. The water and sewer funds also recognize as
operating revenue the portion of the tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the
system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the costs of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses that do not meet this definition
are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available
for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS

1. Casa anp Casa EquvaLents/INvestMENTS - The City considers cash on hand, demand deposits and liquid
investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less to be cash and cash equivalents/investments. Liquid
investments include repurchase agreements purchased under the terms of the City’s depository contract, open
repurchase agreements, certificates of deposit, banker’s acceptances, commercial paper, U.S. Treasury direct and
agency obligations and Florida Department of Treasury Special Purpose Investment Account (SPIA) funds. The
City “pools™ its cash and cash equivalent/investments in order to obtain efficiencics of operation and improved
investment performance. Each fund maintains a share in the equity of the pooled cash and cash equivalents/
investments. FEach fund’s equity in the City’s cash and investment pool has been treated as cash equivalents/
investments since cash may be withdrawn from the pool at any time without prior notice or penalty.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

2. InvestmENTs - The City’s investments, except for funds invested in the Florida Department of Treasury’s Special
Purpose Investment Account, and certain non-participating contracts, are stated at fair value. Fair value is based on
quoted market prices as of the valuation date.

3. Inventory - The City maintains a variety of inventory types, such as fuel, material and supplies, and retail
merchandise, all of which utilize the consumption method stated at cost, which approximates market. Inventory
cost is determined using either the first-in, first-out method or the average cost method. Perpetual inventory records
are maintained for all significant inventorics. Reported inventories of the General Fund are equally offset by a
reservation of fund balance, since they are unavailable for appropriation.

4. Apvancres To Oraer Funps - Noncurrent portions of interfund loans receivable (reported in “Advances to™ asset
accounts) of governmental funds are equally offset by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do
not constitute “available spendable resources™ since they are not a component of net current assets. Current portions
of interfund receivables (reported in “Due from™ asset accounts) are considered “available spendable resources.”
The proceeds of advances to governmental funds are recorded in “Other Financing Sources.”

5. RestricTeD Assers — Certain proceeds of the City’s enterprise funds revenue bonds, as well as certain resources
set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because their use is
limited by applicable bond covenants. Assets arc set aside for the following uses:

»  Revenue Bonds Current Debt Service —used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments
over the next twelve months.

» Revenue Bonds Future Debt Service — used to report resources set aside to make up potential future
deficiencies in the revenue bonds current debt service account.

* Revenue Bonds Renewal and Replacement —used to report resources set aside to fund asset renewals and
replacements or to meet unexpected contingencies.

6. CapitaL Assers - Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment, improvements other than buildings,
intangibles and public domain infrastructure assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets, other than land and infrastructure,
are defined as assets with a cost of $1,000 or more and an estimated useful life greater than one year. Land and
infrastructure assets are long-lived capital assets that are stationary in nature and can be preserved for a significantly
greater number of years than most general capital assets. Examples of infractructure assets are roads, bridges,
sidewalks, paved paths, utility systems, stormwater dramage systems, traffic control and lighting systems. In the
initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets, the City chose to include all such items regardless of their
acquisition date or amount. The City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets
through backtrending (i.c., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using
an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year). As the
City constructs or acquires additional capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost.
The capitalization threshold for infrastructure assets has been set at $100,000 for roadways and $50,000 for other
infrastructure assets. Land assets have no capitalization threshold, therefore all city-owned land is capitalized.
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NOTE I (CONTINUED)

Other capital assets are recorded at historical cost when purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for
constructed capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are completed. Interest is capitalized during
the construction phase of capital assets for business-type activities constructed with tax-exempt debt. The amount
of interest to be capitalized is calculated as the interest expense incurred from the date of the borrowing until
completion of the project net of the interest earned on invested proceeds over the same period.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the
fund’s financial statements. These general capital assets are included in the governmental activities column of the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets used in the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds are accounted
for in the respective funds. All vehicles of the City are accounted for in the Garage Fund, with the exception of
StarMetro vehicles (generally buses). StarMetro vehicles are accounted for in their own fund. Depreciation on all
exhaustible capital assets used in the Enterprise and Internal Service Funds is charged as an expense against their
operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the respective fund’s balance sheet.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

ASSETS YEARS
Buildings 20to 40
Improvements other than buildings 10 to 40
Equipment and machinery 5 to 40
Vehicles 5to 20
Infrastructure 10 to 60

7. CoMmPENSATED ABSENCES - All non-union employees earn vacation and sick leave starting with the first day of
employment; all non-union employees earn vacation and sick leave based on the number of hours worked.

Vacation leave 1s earned based on creditable service hours worked as follows:

Executive Senior Management General
Creditable Leave earned Creditable Leave earned Creditable Leave earned
Service Hours  per hour Service Hours  per hour Service Hours per hour
0-2,079 0.057693 0-2079 0.057693 0 - 10,400 0.057693
2,080 - 10,400 0.080770 2,080 - 10,400 0.069231 10,401 - 20,800 0.069231
10,401 - 20,800 0.092308 10,401 - 20,800 0.080770 20,801 - 41,600 0.080770
over 20,800 0.103847 20,800 - 41,600 0.092308 over 41,600 0.092308

over 41,600 0.103847
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NOTE I (CONTINUED)

A maximum of 344 hours of vacation leave time may be carried over from one calendar year to the next for
executive employees and a maximum of 264 hours for senior management and general employees. An employee
who terminates employment with the City is paid for any unused vacation leave accumulated to the time of termination.

Sick leave 1s earned at the rate of .023077 hours for each hour of service with no maximum limit on the number of
hours which may be accumulated. A non-unionized employee who terminates from the City for any reason other
than termination for causc will be paid one-half of the total amount of sick leave (without regard to catastrophic
illness leave) accumulated by him or her on the effective date of termination. A unionized employee who terminates
from the City for any reason other than termination for cause will be paid one-third of the total amount of sick leave
without regard to catastrophic illness leave accumulated by him or her on the effective date of termination. If the
employee dies, the sick leave amount will be paid to the employee’s beneficiary or estate. Retiring employees can
clect the option of using the accumulated sick leave amount to purchase single coverage health insurance in licu of
receiving payment.

Accumulated current and long-term vacation and sick pay amounts are accrued when incurred in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for the amounts is reported in the governmental funds

only if they have matured, as a result of employee resignation and retirements.

Employees covered by the Police and Fire bargaining unit shall accrue vacation time on the following basis:

Fre Bargaining Unit Fire Bargaming Unit Police

Supression Personnel Forty-hour Personnel Bargaining Unit

Years of Hours Accrued Years of Hours Accrued Creditable Leave earned
Continuous Service Monthly Continuous Service Monthly Service Hours per hour
1-5 years 13.25 1-5 years 10 0-10,400 0.046154
5-10 years 15.90 5-10 years 12 10,401 - 20,800 0.057693
10-15 years 18.55 10-15 years 14 20,801 - 41,600 0.069231
15-20 years 21.20 15-20 years 16 over 41,600 0.080770
over 20 years 23.85 over 20 years 18

For employees covered by the Police bargaining unit, accrued vacation time may not be carried over in excess of 30
days (240 hours). As of the end of the calendar year, accrued vacation time in excess of 240 hours shall be reduced
to no more than 240 hours for any individual employee.

For employees covered by the Fire bargaining unit, accrued vacation time may not be carried over in excess of 318
hours for suppression personnel and 240 hours for forty-hour personnel.

Employees covered by the Police bargaining unit shall accrue sick leave at the rate of .046154 hours per hour
worked, which is the fractional equivalent of eight (8) hours per month. There is no maximum limit on the number
of hours which may be accumulated by an employee.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE I (CONTINUED)

9. Imnpmrect Cost ALLocarion - The City currently employs an indirect cost allocation system based upon an
independent cost analysis. An administrative service fee is charged by the General Fund to the other operating
funds to address General Fund administrative services provided (e.g., legal, cash management, internal audit, and
budget and policy). At the fund-level statements, the administrative service fee is included in the General Fund’s
Miscellaneous Revenue line item and in the other operating funds in the Contractual Services line. This administrative
service fee is eliminated at year-end in the government-wide statements.

E. DERIVATIVE FUEL INVESTMENTS

In February 2003, the City of Tallahassee initiated transactions related to its fuels price hedging program. As part
of the City’s energy price risk mitigation program, the hedge instruments transactions are made to minimize the risk
of energy price market volatility and counter-party credit risk, primarily for the physical purchases of natural gas.
The hedge instruments are reported at cost on the Statement of Net Assets. Gains and losses related to the hedging
transactions are credited or charged to fuel expense in the period realized.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2009
NOTE IV (CONTINUED)
Investment Type Fair Value S&P Rating

CMO 753 BB
CMO 171 B-
CMO 267 BBEB-
CMO 4,454 CEE
CMO 1,893 NA
Mutual Funds 163,926 NR
Convertible Bonds 73 A-
Convertible Bonds 97 A+
Convertible Bonds 27 AAA
Convertible Bonds 12 B
Convertible Bonds 93 B+
Convertible Bonds 49 BB
Convertible Bonds 49 BB-
Convertible Bonds 106 BB+
Convertible Bonds 25 BBB
Convertible Bonds 77 BBB-
Convertible Bonds 201 BBB+
Convertible Bonds 453 CCcC+
Convertible Bonds 172 NA
Convertible Bonds 163 NR
Corporate Bonds 6,111 A
Corporate Bonds 2,517 A-
Corporate Bonds 1,392 A+
Corporate Bonds 1,195 AA-
Corporate Bonds 1,732 AA+
Corporate Bonds 2,766 AAA
Corporate Bonds 1,184 B
Corporate Bonds 480 B-
Corporate Bonds 373 BB-
Corporate Bonds 63 BB+
Corporate Bonds 2,742 BEBB
Corporate Bonds 1,194 BEB-
Corporate Bonds 3,284 BBB+
Corporate Bonds 14 cce
Corporate Bonds 99 NA
Mortgage Pass Through 208 AA
Mortgage Pass Through 44,754 AAA
Municipals 448 A
Preferred Stock 24 B
Preferred Stock 31 BB
Preferred Stock 117 NA
Venture Capital 867 NA
US Treasury 43,434 AAA
Yankees 187 A-
Yankees 1,109 At
Yankees 673 AA
Yankees 445 AA-
Mututal Index Funds 266,815 NR
Domestic Stock 267,652 NR
International Stock 85,767 NR
Short Term Investments 7,743 NR
Real Estate 59,456 NR
Total 3 1,016,723
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2009

NOTE IV (CONTINUED)

2. Summarized below are the City’s individual bond issues which were outstanding at September 30, 2009 (in
thousands):

GENERAL REVENUE BONDS:

$15,360,000 Capital Bonds - Series 2001, due in annual installments of
$1.720,000 to $1.790,000 from October 1, 2010 to October 1, 2011, interest
rates at 3.80% to 5.00% depending on maturity date. $ 5,170

74,215,000 Capital Bonds - Series 2008 defeasance of Capital Bond 2004,

due in annual installments of $1,265,000 to $7,310,000 from October 1, 2010

to October 1, 2024, interest rates at 3.00% to 5.00% depending on maturity 74,215
date.

$9,400,000 Capital Bonds — Series 2008, due in annual installments of
$1,100,000 to $1.,345,000 from October 1, 2010 to October 1, 2016, interest
rates at 3.410%. 9,400

$26,975 Capital Bonds — Series 2009, due in annual installments of
$1,025,000 to $615,000 from April 1, 2010 to April 1, 2031, interest rates at 26.975
3.710%.

The general revenue bonds are payable from and secured by a first lien and
pledge of the Local Government Half-cent Sales Tax, Guaranteed
Entitlement Revenues, and earnings on the investment of all funds and
accounts created by and described in the Bond Resolutions.

Total General Revenue Bonds 115,760

PROPRIETARY REVENUE BONDS:

$143,800,000 Energy System - Series 1998A, due in annual installments of
$4.060,000 to $9.645,000 from October 1, 2010 to October 1, 2028, interest
at 5.00% to 5.25% depending on maturity date. Bonds are payable and
secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided by the 1998
General Resolution which includes net revenues of the City's Electric
System and certain other amounts as provided by Resolution. 127,845

$49.,220,000 Energy System - Series 1998B, due in annual installments of
$2.200,000 to 4,840,000 from October 1, 2023 to October 1, 2028, interest
rates at 5.00%. Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of
certain funds provided by the 1998 General Resolution which includes net
revenues of the City’s Energy System and certain other amounts as
provided by Resolution 1991B. 24,200
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$17,680,000 Energy System Refunding Revenue Bonds - Series 2001, due in
annual installments of $985,000 to $1,200,000 from October 1, 2010 to Oc¢tober 1,
2019, interest rates at 4.40% to 5.50% depending on maturity date. Bonds are
payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided by the 1998
General Resolution which includes net revenues of the City’s Energy system. 11,730

$128,920,000 Emnergy System Revenue Bonds - Series 2005, due in annual
installments of $2,515,000 to $8,140,000 from October 1, 2010 to October 1,
2035, interest rates at 3.50% to 5.00% depending on maturity date. Bonds are
payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided by the 1998
General Resolution which includes net revenues of the City’s Energy system. 126,570

$203,230,000 Emnergy System Revenue Bonds - Series 2007, due in annual
installments of $2,465,000 to $19,275,000 from October 1, 2010 to October 1,
2037, interest rates at 4.00% to 5.00% depending on maturity date. Bonds are
payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided by the 1998
General Resolution which includes net revenues of the City’s Energy system. 200,975

$23,900,000 Consolidated Utility Systemm Refunding Revenue Bonds - Series
2001, due in annual installments of $1,090,000 to $2,110,000 from October 1,
2010 to October 1, 2019, interest rates at 4.50% to 5.50% depending on maturity
date. Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds
provided by Resolution, net revenues of the City's Utility System (consisting of
the City’s water and sewer systems) and the gross revenues of the City's
Stormwater Drainage System. 16,575

$36,110,000 Consolidated Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds - Series
2005, due in annual installments of $2,820,000 to $3,265,000 from October 1,
2010 to October 1, 2014 and $1,105,000 to $1,785,000 from Qctober 1, 2020 to
October 1, 2030, interest rates at 3.25% to 5.00% depending on maturity date.
Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided
by Resolution, net revenues of the City’s Utility System (consisting of the City’s
water and sewer systems) and the gross revenues of the City’s Stormwater
Drainage System. 33,450

$164,460,000 Consolidated Utility System Revenue Bonds — Series 2007, due in
annual installments of $1,610,000 to $10,210,000 from October 1, 2010 to
October 1, 2037, interest rates of 4.00% to 5.00% depending on maturity date.
Bonds are payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided
by Resolution, net revenues of the City’s Utility System (consisting of the City’s
W ater and Stormwater Drainage System). 164,460

$7,355,000 Airport System Revenue Refunding Bonds - Series 2004, due in
annual installments of $825,000 to $925,000 from QOctober 1, 2010 to October 1,
2013, interest rates at 3.50% to 4.00% depending on maturity date. Bonds are
payable and secured by a lien on and pledge of certain funds provided by

Resolution, and net revenues of the City’s Airport System. 4,290
Total Proprietary Revenue Bonds 710,095
Total Bonds Payable § 794,230
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City of Tallahassee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Federal Grantor/Pass Through CFDA/CSFA Federal Pass-Through/State
Grantor/Program Title Number Grant Number Grant Number Expenditures
FEDERAL AWARDS

L.5. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Programs:

Community Development Block Grant-Entitlement 14.218 B-9XMC-12-0019 N/A 5 811,139
HOME 14.239 M9X-MC-120221 N/A 991,048
Emergency Shelter Grant 14.231 S05-MC-120010 N/A 83,549
Neighborhood Stakilization Program 14.228 N/A N/A 13,103
1,898,339

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act:
CDBG - Recovery Administration Funds 14.253 B-09-MY¥-12-0019 N/A 2,950
Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing 14.257 S09-MY-12-0010 N/A 7,367
10,317
Total U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development 1,909,156

U.5, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Direct Programs:

Think About Personal Pollution {TAPP) Grant 66.460 €9-99451505-05 N/A 309,642
Brownfield Grant for Hazardous Substances 66.818 BF-95408008-0 N/A 39,201
Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 348,843

U.5. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Direct Programs:
Grants for Public Works and Economic Development Fecilities 11.300 04-01-05502 N/A 22,014
Total U.S. Department of Commerce 22,014

L.5. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Pass through Florida Department of Environmental Protection:
Outdoor Recreation Acquisition, Development and Planning 15.916 N/A LW532 90,360
Total U.S. Department of the Interior 90,360

L.5. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION
Direct Programs:

Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-X646 N/A 762,770
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-¥563 N/A 125,185
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-¥618 N/A 762,159
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-03-0229 N/A 41,020
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-X659 N/A 2,015,437
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-03-0261 N/A 226,838
Federal Transit Formula Grant 20.507 FL-90-X708 N/A 1,235,431
lob Access-Reverse Commute Project Grant 20.516 FL-37-X030 N/A 1,353

NATIONAL HIGHWAY TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMINISTRATION
Pass through Florida Department of Transportation:
Campbell Connector Trail 20.600 N/A AD505 16,469

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION
Direct Programs:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-12-0077-33 N/A 8,214
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-12-0077-34 N/A 17,081
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 5,211,957



City of Tallahassee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Federal Grantor/Pass Through CFDA/CSFA Federal Pass-Through/State
Grantor/Program Title Number Grant Number Grant Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Direct Programs:

Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 16.738 05-DJ-BX-0994 N/A 37,400
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 16.738 2006-DJ-BX-0819 N/A 19,851
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 16.738 2007-DJ-BX-1272 N/A 62,076
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) 16.738 2008-DJ-BX-0302 N/A 64,339
National Asset Forfeiture Strategic Plan 16.738 N/A N/A 23,850
Total U.S. Department of Justice 207,516
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Direct Programs:
Law Enforcement Officers Reimbursement Agreement Program 97.090 HSTSO208HSLR350 N/A 403,099
Pass through Florida Department of Community Affairs:
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 97.036 N/A 09-55-E8-02-47-13-515 319,581
2007-2010 USAR Training and Sustainment 97.081 N/A 13-00-16-373/998778 101,022
2009-2010 HazMat Training and Sustainment 97.081 N/A 13-00-16-373/998776 79,091
Pass through Florida Department of Law Enforcement:
Bulletproof Vests 16.607 N/A N/A 3,886
Anti-Gang 16.609 N/A 007-PN/AG-LEON-1-P7-002 63,525
Anti-Firearm 16.609 N/A 2009-P500-LEON-1-V9-004 11,266
Pass through Florida Department of Emergency Management
Incident Tracking 97.067 N/A 09-DS-12-02-47-02-415 82,000
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 1,063,470
Total Federal Awards Expended S 8,853,316
STATE AWARDS
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Transportation Disadventaged: Non-Sponsored Trips 55.001 N/A 22710618401 5 422,224
Transportation Disadventaged - (5311} 55.002 N/A 42136418426 60,091
Transportation Disadvantaged - (5311} 55.002 N/A 42136418427 112,419
Transportation Disadventaged - Medicaid (Net) 55.002 N/A 41604318201 614,125
Service Development - FY 07/08 Star Metro 55.010 N/A 4225231/AP147 100,000
Operating Assistance - FY 07/08 Star Metro 55.010 N/A 4140971/A0R08 969,624
Teen Traffic Safety 55.008 N/A APJ27 19,999
Apalachee Parkway Sidewalk {LAP) 55.008 N/A AOHRR 6,864
FDOT - RTMC JPA 55.008 N/A AP741 15,485
Freeway Management and intelligent Transportation System 55.008 N/A AOP51 82,422
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226761-19401 647
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226769-19401 379,590
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226778-19401 1,348
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226792-18401 41,380
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226820-19401 50,905
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 226821-19401 1,393
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 405863-19401 458
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 409507-19401 124,123
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 409513-19401 75
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 417055-15801 581,236
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 418991-19401 93,641
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 420711-19401 129,172
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 416011-19401 202,785
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 414088-19401 2,139
Airport Improvement Program 55.004 N/A 422301-49401 42,075

Total Florida Department of Transportation 4,054,280



City of Tallahassee
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Federal Grantor/Pass Through CFDA/CSFA Federal Pass-Through/State
Grantor/Program Title Number Grant Number Grant Number Expenditures

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Woaste and Recycling - 2007 37.050 N/A 1G0O7-02 124,026
Woaste and Recycling - 2008 37.050 N/A 1G8-18 188,468
Total Florida Department of Envirenmental Protection 312,494

FLORIDA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
Morth Florida Floeding 2009 52.008 N/ A 09-55-E8-02-47-13-515 53,264

Total Florida Emergency Management Agency 53,264

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORP.
State Housing Initiatives Partnership Program 52.901 N/A N/A 1,949,069

Total Florida Housing Finance Corp. 1,949,069

ELORIDA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

Front Porch Florida 52.030 N/A uoo-7 87,220
Total Florida Department of Community Affairs 87,220
Total State Awards Expended S 6,456,327
Total Financial Assistance Expended $ 15,309,643
NOTES

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Finencial Assistance was prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
This method is consistent with the method used in the preparation of the City's financial statements.

The City does not use sub recipients.

No federal or state financial assistance was expended in non-cash assistance.



City of Tallahassee

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Federal Programs — None
(2008)

State Projects — None
(2008)

Financial Statement Findings

Significant Deficiency 2007-1 Accounting for Capital Assets

In the prior year, we noted that depreciation expense on capital assts was not properly recorded
for some assets. The accounting services division relies on the other divisions of the City to
provide information regarding purchases of capital assets and also the date that constructed
assets are placed in service. Sometimes there is a lag between the date the asset was placed
in service and the date that the asset is entered into the fixed asset system which results in a
delay in depreciation charges. As a result, depreciation on capital assets may not be properly
recorded due to timing of entering of assets into the fixed asset system. To properly account for
capital assets in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, we recommended
that significant capital assets be reviewed for proper entry date prior to year end. Additionally,
significant construction in progress should be reviewed at least annually to determine whether
any assets had been completed and placed in service before final closing of the project is
reported to accounting.

2008 Status: The City’'s Fixed Asset policy was amended to clarify the responsibility of other
departments of the City to provide accounting services with timely information to record
purchased assets as soon as they are placed in service. The revised policy was forwarded to
all departments for their information and compliance.






The management's discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information as
listed in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inguiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, other supplementary
information and the statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance
is also presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, and is also not a
required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements, other supplementary information, and schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on them.

M,WULW/L-LC

Tallahassee, Florida
March 12, 2010






deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs, we consider the deficiency numbered 2009-1 to be a
material weakness.

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the City’s responses and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

We have noted other matters pursuant to the Rules of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.550
that we have reported to the management of the City in a separate management comment
letter dated March 12, 2010.

The City’'s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
management response letter. We did not audit the City’'s responses and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, City
Commissioners, City Manager, Audit Committee, the Auditor General of the State of Florida,
and Federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

M,WU"W/L"—C

Tallahassee, Florida
March 12, 2010






audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or state project in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express anh opinion on the effectiveness of the City's
internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program or state project on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects
the entity's ability to administer a federal program or state project such that there is more than a
remote likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program or state project that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by
the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program or state project will not be prevented or detected by the
entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. Ve did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as
defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Honorable Mayor, City
Commissioners, City Manager, Audit Committee, and the Auditor General of the State of Florida
and Federal and State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties.

M,WVLW',L-’—C

Tallahassee, Florida
March 12, 2010



City of Tallahassee
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs — Federal Awards and State Financial
Assistance
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Section 1 — Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditors’ report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? No
Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? No
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal program? Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with OMB Circular A-1337? No

Identification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program

14.239 Housing and Urban Development HOME Program

66.460 Think About Personal Pollution (TAPP) Grant

20.507 Capital and Operating Transit Assistance — Sec. 5307
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

Page #



State Awards

Internal control over major projects:

Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? No
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major state projects? Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General? No

Identification of major state projects:

CSFA Number Name of State Project
55.010 Transportation Service Development/Operating Assistance
37.050 Waste and Recycling
52.901 State Housing Initiatives Partnership Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

Material Weakness 2008-1 Accounting for Retired Capital Assets

Condition: After a capital asset was retired, the fixed asset system removed the cost basis of
the asset but did not remove the depreciation schedule.

Reason Improvement Needed: To ensure that there is not a material misstatement of the
financial statements and to properly account for capital assets in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Cause of Condition: Fixed asset system programming error.

Effect of Condition: Depreciation on retired capital assets was recorded as an expense in the
years after they were retired, thus materially overstating expenses and understating capital
assets in the years since the asset's retirement.

Recommendation: A prior period adjustment was required and the City made the adjustment.
We recommend that City review a sample of retirements during the fiscal year to ensure that the
cost and accumulated depreciation related to the capital asset has been properly accounted for
in the fixed asset system. In addition, we recommend that the programming error be
researched and fixed.

Costs and Benefits of Recommended Action: Depreciation on capital assets will be properly
recorded.

Page #






CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from CUSLOIMETS........cooeveieviieieee e
Cash Received from Other Funds...........
Cash Received from Other Revenues
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services...
Cash Paid to Employees for Services..................
Cash Paid to Other Funds...

Cash Paid for Other Expenses .
Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Operatmg Activities..........

CASHFLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers In from Other Funds..
Operating Grants Received
Repayment of Advances
Transfers Out to Other Funds....
Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Noncapital Financing A ctivities.....

CASHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Energy Loan Program.....
Capital Contributions
Systermn Charges....
Proceeds from Sale of Properl.y
Bond and Loan Proceeds

Repayment of Loans fiom Other Funds...............
Funding of Energy L.oan Prograrn...
Interest Paid
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital
and Related Financing Activities...
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of
Investment Securities...
Tnterest Received on Investments...
Purchase of Investment Securities... .
Decrease in the Fair Value of Cash and Cash Equwalents ...................
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2007
(in thousands)

Enterprise Funds
Other Total
Stormwater Enterprise Enterprise Tnternal
Electric Gas Sewer Water Airport Management Funds Funds Service Funds
$ 352304 §$ 32,505 % 33,621 $ 25,758 § 12,494 16,210 § 47,288 % 520,180 $ --
- - - - - - - - 318,177
941 117 433 597 - 26 13 2,127 -
(234,142) (22,096) (11,119) (6,894) (6,466) (3,220) (18,534) (302,471) (254,671)
(15,673) (2,303) {10,762) {4,538) {4,145) (4,523) (32,377 (74,321) {28,859)
(17,357) (2.926) (5,063) (4,814) (1,121) (2,484) (10,100) (43,865) -
(850) (70) (73) (80) (3,880) - - (4,953) -
85,223 5,227 7,037 10,029 (3,118) 6,000 (13,710) 96,697 34,647
82 12 98 19 - - 9,220 9431 250
33 - -- - -- -- 3,905 3,938 -
- - - - {203) - - (203) -
(22,712) (2.326) (2,035) (5,639) (889) (171) (372) (34,144) (1,702)
(22,597) (2.314) (1,937) (5,620) (1,092) (171) 12,753 (20,578) (1,452)
5,819 - - - - - - 5,819 -
- - - - 7,284 7,520 4,165 18,969 -
- - 5,208 1,490 - - - 6,698 -
- - - - - - 14 14 3
197316 5,813 - - - - - 203,129 258
{83,298) (2,239) {11,391) (11,244 (3,390 (7.432) {6,033) {125,031) (5,547)
(12,100 (870) (2,440) (1,048) (760) - - (17,218) -
- {46 (539) (55%) - - (82) (1,226) {14,378)
(6,388) - - - - - - (6,388) -
(17,370) (1,312) (2,964) (348) (379) - (159) (22,530) (925)
83,979 1,346 {12,126) (11,707) 2751 88 {2,095) 62,236 {20,589)
153,015 4,844 7,379 896 10 - - 166,144 -
8,383 504 1,180 044 553 1,793 378 13,735 2,914
(234,002) (9,868) (7,346) (881) - - - (252,097) -
1,965 87 166 86 140 470 73 2,987 708
$ (70,639 $  (4433) S 1379 % 1,045 8 703 2263 3§ 451 $  (69231) $ 3,622




Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents.............c..........
Cash and Cash Equivalents - October 1............
Cash and Cash Equivalents - September 30
Classified As:
Unrestricted Assets..
Restricted Assets

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)

to Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Operating Activities:

Operating Tnc orme (ToS8). ..o e st e e e

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating A ctivities:
DEPTECIAIONL.c..v e ettt et e sttt ere st s s eae s sessrnnene
AMOTHZAON. ..o
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable........

Decrease in Other Accounts Receivable. ...
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory
Decrease in Due From Other Funds....
Tncrease (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Decrease in Due To Other Funds...................
Tncrease in loans to other finds..........
Tncrease in Utility Deposits Payable....

Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Leave...

Tncrease in Prepaid Fees Credit....

Decrease in Insurance Deposits....

Total AQIUSHTIENES. ......ove ittt s s srneene
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating

ACHVILIES. ..ot cvee ettt e st et e e e s et e e

MNoncash Capital and Investing A ctivities:
Decrease in FMV 0f INVEStMENIES.........c.ceeevve ettt

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2007

(in thousands)

Enterprise Funds
Other Total
Stormwater Enterprise Enterprise Tnternal

Electric Gas Sewer Water Airport Management Funds Funds Service Funds

$ 75,965 S (17 8 (5,647 8 (6253 3§ (756) $ 8,189 S (2,601) $ 68724 § 16,228
109,627 8,202 20,956 14,197 13,683 35,300 0410 211,375 49,172

3 185,593 § 8,028 % 15309 § 7944 % 12,927  § 43489 § 6,809 § 280,099 % 65,400
3 85969 § 4382 % 1,349  § 2,287 % 2,715 % 43489 § 6,809 % 147,000 % 65,400
99,624 3,646 13,960 5,657 10,212 - - 133,099 -

3 185,593 § 8,028 § 15309 § 7944  § 12,927  § 43489 § 6,809 § 280,099  § 65,400
3 38,581 § 3,280 % 924 § 6,978 % 535 % 5785 % (15277 % 40818 % 715
25,740 1,537 5,888 2,673 2,708 438 2,005 40,989 9,489

119 6 137 7 147 - - 416 -

313 64 &4 (31 224 o)) @) 626 -

91 47 360 517 (3,879) 26 (2 (2,840) -
668 171 (459) {143) {469) 860 212 840 (173)
- - - - - - - - (312)
4,303 (9 63 69 - - (11) 4416 (2.910)

10,885 - - - - - - 10,885 -
3,785 108 33 (85 (2,146) (L147) {496) 54 (482)

- - - - - - - - 23,867

- - - - - - - - 4,395

683 23 - 20 - - - 726 -

52 (10) 25 24 37 40 (135) 42 67

- - - - (275) - - 275 -

-- - -- - -- -- - - ©

46,639 1,938 6,113 3,051 (3.653) 224 1,567 55,870 33,932

3 85,223 § 5227 % 7,037 % 10,029 § (3,118) § 6,009 § (13,7100 % 96,697 % 34,647
$ (42) $ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 3 - 8 - 8 (42) % --

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007
(in thousands)

Program Revenues

Charges Onperating
for Grants and Capital Grants
Expenses Services Contributions and Contributions
Function/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General GOVEITIMENL.............c.ooiviieiiie e % 23,047 % 1,835 % 2,500 $ --
Public Safety.... .o 50,875 3,726 468 74
TransPOTEARIOTL. .......oiiiici i 20,896 2,224 66 4,195
Human Services.............. 6,182 1,347 1,087 368
Economic Development............cccoovoiiiininciinecc e 9,143 -- 5,405 --
Physical ENVIronment..............c.ocoovevieieiieiceceeeece e 3,499 2,082 -- 736
Culture and Recreation.............cooooiiii i 18,168 3,839 109 2
Unallocated Depreciation on Infrastructure..............cc.cooceeenne 24,002 -- -- --
Interest on Long-Term Debt...........cocoooiiiiiiiiiiice 4,855 - - -
Total governmental activities.............ccoovviiimicnecnninins 160,667 15,073 9,635 5375
Business-type Activities:
ELECHIC. ..o 323,181 347,388 33 --
GFES ..ottt 40,063 43,321 -- --
S EWET. ..ottt 35,747 39,721 -- --
WAL ..o 19,057 27,988 -- --
ATTPOTE. s 16,084 12,494 -- 7,284
STATMEITO. ..o 16,299 3,640 3,842 4,165
SOLA WaSE......ooiiiii e 20,791 18,778 -- --
GOIE s 1,165 1,007 -- --
Stormwater Management...............ccooviviiii e 9,878 15,350 - 7,520
FIre SeIVICEE.....oviiiiiieeecieciceeee e 25,197 23,663 -- --
Total business-type activities. 507,462 533,350 3,875 18,969
Total primary government........c.coocvvnnnneimsssssesssennnnns $ 668,129 § 348,423 $ 13,510 $ 24,344
Component Unit:
Downtown Improvement Authority..........cococoiiiiiiiiiccc 5 236 % - $ -- $ --

General Revenues:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes. ..o,
Public service taxes
Business license tax
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs...................
Net unrestricted investment earmings. ...
Net securities lending income. ...
Net increase in fair value of investments.............................l
MMISCRILANBOTIS . ...ttt

Gain (logs) on the sale of capital assets......................o
Special Ttem - reclassification of internal service funds........................
Net ranslers. . ...
Total general revenues and transfers............................
Change in net assets............ooiii e
Netassets - October L.
Adjustment to October 1 netassets........................oinis,
Net assets - October Lasrestated. ...
Net assets - September 30,

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2007

(in thousands)

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
(18,712) - % (18,712) % --

(46,607) -- (46,607) --

(14,411) -- (14,411) --
(3,380) -- (3,380) --
(3,738) -- (3,738) --

(681) -- (681) --

(14,198) -- (14,198) --

(24,002) -- (24,002) --
(4,855) -- (4,855) --

(130,584) -- (130,584) --
-- 24,240 24,240 -

-- 3,258 3,258 --

-- 3,974 3,974 --

-- 8,931 8,931 --

-- 3,694 3,694 --

-- (4,652) (4,652) --

-- (2,013) (2,013) --

-- (158) (158) --

-- 12,992 12,992 --

-- (1,334) (1,534) --

-- 48,732 48,732 --
(130,584) 48,732 (81,852) --
(236)

35,630 -- 35,630 148
21,747 -- 21,747 --
1,799 -- 1,799 --
26,216 -- 26,216 --
8,373 13,219 21,592 10
90 #REF! #REF! --
1,282 3,513 4,795 2
3,120 -- 3,120 101
853 (4,232) (3,379)

(54,332) 54,332 -- --
25,830 (25,830) -- --
70,608 #REF! #REF! 261
{39,976) #REF! #REF! 25
1,035,562 879,276 1,914,838 152
10,696 (1,046) 9,650 --
1,046,258 878,230 1,924,488 152

986,282 #REF! #REF! 3 177

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2007
(in thousands)

Primary Government Component Unit
Dovmtown
Governmental Business-type Improvement
Activities Activities Total Authority
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents.....................ccoooo oo 8 107,124 % 195,503 § 302,627 192
Securities Lending Collateral ... 22,822 43,304 66,126 43
Receivables:
Accrued Interest..........oooii e 857 1,619 2,476 2
Customers and Other...............oco e, 3513 40,327 43,840 4
LS =TT 103 4,608 4,771 --
Special Assessments...... R 408 -- 408 --
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts......... (539) (2,785) (3,324) --
Due from Other Governments........................ 2,576 3,699 0,275 --
Prepaid Expenses - 10,746 10,746 --
Inventory.......ccooviiii R 351 45,098 45,449 --
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted......................... 12,027 133,009 145,126 --
Investments - Restricted..................oc 04,375 115,983 180,358 --
Securities Lending Collateral - Restricted....................... 17,676 55,181 72,857 --
Receivables - Restricted:
Accrued Interest..........oooii e 96 1,247 1,343 --
OHhET .o 2 152 154 --
NS .ot e s 3,139 -- 3,139 --
Due from Other Governments..................c.coooeevee e 845 1,530 2,375 --
Total Current ASSEts.......ccvvveenceeessseesrarsssensssasnssanns 235,375 649,371 884,746 241
Noncurrent Assets
Internal Balances............o.ooo oo e 17,077 (17.077) -- --
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs. ..o, 896 6,430 7,326 --
Capital Assets
Land and Construction in Progress...........ccocoeeveeeen. 387,799 319,887 707,686 --
Other, Net of Accumulated Depreciation...................... 520,795 825,253 1,355,048 --
Total Noncurrent ASSetS.. i 935,567 1,134,493 2,070,060 --
TOtal ASSELS.cciunisiriensirersrssensessssserranssssssssssssssssssosssne $ 1,170,942 $§ 1,783864 § 2954806 241

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

September 30, 2007
(in thousands)

Primary Government Component Unit
Dovmtown
Governmental Business-type Improvement
Activities Activities Total Authority
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Obligations Under Securities Lending ... % 22,822 $ 43,304 66,126 43
Accounts Payable............ooo e 8,753 39227 47,980 15
Customer Contracts Payable..........ccooiiiii -- 1,275 1,275 --
Utility Deposits Payable..........ccooooiiiii s - 18,445 18,445 --
Uneamed ReVENUE...........co i 3373 0,342 9,715 --
Compensated Absences........... e s 6,180 7.403 13,583 6
Accounts Payable - Restricted.....................cooooe. 512 1,901 2,413 --
Obligations Under Securities Lending - Restricted.......... 17,676 55,181 72,857 --
Uneamed Revenue - Restricted............occooovii . 1,169 -- 1,169 --
Bonds & Loans Payable - Current 4,160 14,926 19,086 --
Total Current Liabilities.......cccverieresnnerecnsscenesenns 64,645 188,004 252,649 64
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated ADSENCes..........ocooovev i 2,351 3.335 5,686 --
Customer Contracts Payable..........ccooiiiii -- 2.550 2,550 --
Claims Payable.. ... -- 9.067 9,067 --
Bonds & Loans Payable.............ccoooooiiiiii e 114,335 605,512 719,847 --
Unamortized Bond Premium ... 3,329 9.832 13,161 --
Deferment of Loss on Early Retirement of Debt............. -- (2,542) (2,542) --
Total Noncurrent Liabilities........ccovniiiiinnnniciincens 120,015 027,754 747,769 --
Total Liabilities.......ccocnreirersnsserrssssnsssassessssassssssossesas 184,660 815,758 1,000,418 64
NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt................ 818,300 665,127 1,483,493 --

Restricted £Or . ..o e
Capital Projects. ... 3,670 83,284 86,954 --
Debt ServICe. ..o 8,750 24,642 33,392 --
Other PUIPOSES.......coie e e 7,198 -- 7,198 --
Unrestricted......c.oooov o e 148,298 195,053 343,351 177
Total NEt ASSEES. c.covnrrerersserressssserrssssssssssssssssasssssnesns 986,282 968,106 1,954,388 177
Total Liabilities and Net ASSELS......oereesnrrersasassanas 5 1,170,942 § 1,783,864 2,954,800 241

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Funds
For the Year FEnded September 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Enterprise Funds
Other Total
Stormwater Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Electric Gas Sewer Water Airport Management Funds Funds Service Funds

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from CUSLOIMETS........cooeveieviieieee e 3 349201 § 34489 § 40,292 § 24,713 $ 13,053  § 16,847 § 48,812 § 527497 §$ --
Cash Received from Other Funds...........

- - - - - - - - 309,827
Cash Received from Other Revenues 590 157 3 - -- -- - 750 --
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services... (257,213) (25,102) (8,016) (6,468) (3,753) (1,786) (19,617) (321,955) (282,006)
Cash Paid to Employees for Services................... (19,34%) (2,196) (11,303) {4,280) {4,312) {4,865) (33,612) (79,917) (30,036)
Cash Paid to Other Funds... (17,226) (2,565) (5,596) (5,904) (996) (2,753) (10,968) (46,008) -
Cash Paid for Other Expenses . (905) @) (882) (140) (3,434) -- - (5,368) --

Net Cash Provided by (Used For) Operatmg Activities.......... 55,188 4,776 14,498 7,921 558 7443 (15,385) 74,999 (2,215)

CASHFLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers In from Other Funds.. . 110 - - - - 2,717 11,425 14,252 67
Operating Grants Received - - - - - - 4,172 4,172 -
Repayment of Advances -- -- -- -- (214) -- -- 214) --
Transfers Out to Other Funds.... (23,060) (2,332) (2,141) (5,865) (893) (232) (367) (34,890) (929)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Noncapital Financing A ctivities..... (22,950) (2,332) (2,141) (5,865) {1,107) 2,485 15,230 {16,680) (862)

CASHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Energy Loan Program..... 6,383 - -- - -- -- - 6,383 --
Capital Contributions - - - - 4,442 13 3,206 7,661 -
Systermn Charges.... - - 3,817 1,114 - - - 4,931 -
Proceeds from Sale of Properl.y - -- -- - -- -- - -- --
Bond and Loan Proceeds 18,362 2,372 135,104 43,921 (950) - - 198,809 407

(95,625) (2,418) (10,112) (10,589) - {4,573) (3,234) {126,551) (6,969)
(11,191) (1,750) (3,407 (248) (804) - - (17,400) -
Repayment of Loans fiom Other Funds............... -- 40) (153) (192) -- -- (20) (7035) (1,659)
Funding of Energy L.oan Prograrn... (6,718) -- -- -- -- -- -- (6,718) --
Interest Paid (25,666) (1,721) (7,913) (1,434) (156) - (175) (37,065) (1,254)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital

and Related Financing Activities... (114,485) (3,557 117,036 32,572 2,532 (4,560) (223) 29,315 (9,475
CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sale and Maturities of

Investment Securities... 376,134 16,803 249214 55,587 - - - 697,738 -
Interest Received on Investments... 11,372 508 4,080 1,268 476 1,732 254 19,690 2,672
Purchase of Investment Securities... . (303,670) (14,320) (375,422) (75,097) -- -- - (768,509) --
Decrease in the Fair Value of Cash and Cash Equwalents ................... (3,589) (155) (462) (218) (315) (1,035) (138) (5,912) (1,144

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities...........cococov e ieverivs i $ 80,247 $ 2,836 § (122,590) % (18460) 3 161 % 697 $ 116 § (56,993) % 1,528

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.



Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents.............c..........
Cash and Cash Equivalents - October 1............
Cash and Cash Equivalents - September 30
Classified As:
Unrestricted Assets..
Restricted Assets

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss)

to Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Operating Activities:

Operating Tnc orme (oS8 ... s e e

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating A ctivities:
DEPTECIAIONL ...t v ettt et e st et st s s s sessrnnene
AMOTHZAON. ..o
Provision for Uncollectible Accounts
Net OPEB Obligation...............cc.....

(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable.. ...,
Decrease in Other Accounts Receivable....
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory................
Decrease in Due From Other Funds
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable.
Decrease in Due To Other Funds.....
Increase in loans to other funds....
Increase in Utility Deposits Payable....
Tncrease (Decrease) in Compensated Absences.......
Tncrease in Prepaid Fees Credit.........oos

Decrease in Insurance Deposits....
Total Adjustments....
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating
ACHVITIES. . ov. ettt e et st

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Proprietary Funds

(in thousands)

For the Year FEnded September 30, 2008

Enterprise Funds
Other Total
Stormwater Enterprise Enterprise Internal

Electric Gas Sewer Water Airport Management Funds Funds Service Funds
(2,000) 1,723 6,803 16,168 2,144 6,065 $ (262) 30,641 $ (11,024)
185,593 8,028 15,309 7,944 12,027 43,489 6,809 280,099 65,400
183,503 9,751 22112 24,112 15,071 49,554 § 6,547 310,740 § 54,376
70,400 3,711 852 3,216 2,854 - 8 6,547 87,580 § 54,376
113,184 6,040 21,260 20,896 12,217 49,554 - 223,151 -
183,593 9,751 22,112 24,112 15,071 49,554  § 6,547 310,740 $ 54,376
41,330 4,079 7,453 4,502 129 5905 § (18073 45415 § {1,419)
29,595 1,550 6,301 2,848 3,136 644 2,155 46,229 8,208
83 27 63 5 125 - - 303 -

9 (34) (38) {60 30 (12 (15 {60 -

533 59 267 111 94 112 1,057 2,233 694
(315) 150 (879) (140) (3.434) - - (4,618 -
(16,297 (326 (1,017 62 194 331 ©2) (17,145) 523
- -- -- - -- -- - -- (38)
(2,214) 11 376 - - - (51 (L878) (703)
166 - - - - - - 166 -
1,342 (696) 1,504 589 184 348 (588) 2,773 27,205
- - - - - - - - {41,407)

- - - - - - - - 4,324

801 (8 - 6 - - - 799 -

95 (36) 378 2 (32 23 222 654 148

- - - - 132 - - 132 -

- - - - - - - - 158
13,858 697 7,045 3419 429 1,448 2,688 29,584 (796)
55,188 4,776 14,498 7,021 558 7443 § (15385 74,000 § (2,215




CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008

(in thousands)

Program Revenues

Charges Onperating
for Grants and Capital Grants
Expenses Services Contributions and Contributions
Function/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General GOVEITIMENL.............c.ooiviieiiie e % 20,737 % 1,665 % 2,988 $ --
Public Safety.... .o 54,416 2,173 729 31
TransPOTEARIOTL. .......oiiiici i 23,314 2,250 17 172
Human Services.............. 6,863 692 644 --
Economic Development............cccoovoiiiininciinecc e 7,828 -- 3,968 13
Physical ENVIronment..............c.ocoovevieieiieiceceeeece e 4,739 4,049 257 525
Culture and Recreation.............cooooiiii i 19,459 3,142 907 1
Unallocated Depreciation on Infrastructure..............cc.cooceeenne 23,956 -- -- --
Interest on Long-Term Debt...........cocoooiiiiiiiiiiice 5,798 - - -
Total governmental activities.............ccoovviiimicnecnninins 167,110 13,971 9510 742
Business-type Activities:
ELECHIC. ..o 346,318 369,483 -- --
GFES ..ottt 51,609 33,691 -- --
S EWET. ..ottt 37,835 45,668 -- --
WAL ..o 21,083 25,764 -- --
ATTPOTE. s 16,298 12,713 -- 4,026
STATMEITO. ..o 18,358 4,258 3,407 3,206
SOLA WaSE......ooiiiii e 20,579 19,746 -- --
GOIE s 1,264 936 -- --
Stormwater Management...............ccooviviiii e 10,629 16,516 - 13
FIre SeIVICEE.....oviiiiiieeecieciceeee e 27,612 23,962 -- --
Total business-type activities. 551,605 572,737 3,407 7,245
Total primary government........c.coocvvnnnneimsssssesssennnnns $ 718715 § 386,708 § 12,917 $ 7,987
Component Unit:
Downtown Improvement Authority..........cococoiiiiiiiiiccc 5 228 % - $ -- $ --

General Revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes.....................
Public service taxes
Business license tax
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Net unrestricted investment earnings............................

Net securities lending income.................ococoiiin.
Net decrease in fair value of investments.......................
MISCEIIANMBOUS . ...ttt
Gain (logs) on the sale of capital assets.........................

Net transfers. ...

Total general revenues and transfers

Changeinnetassets................cocoiiiiiiiiiee e

Netassets - October 1.......................................

Adjustment to October 1 netassets.........................

Net agsets - October 1 asrestated. ..........................
Net assets - September 30,

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008

(in thousands)

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
(16,084) § -- (16,084) % --
(51,483) -- (51,483) --
(20,875) -- (20,875) --
(5,527) -- (5,527 --
(3,847) -- (3.847) --
92 -- 92 --
(15,409) -- (15,409) --
(23,956) -- (23,956) --
(5,798) -- (5,798) --
(142,887) -- (142,887) --
-- 23,165 23,165 -
-- 2,082 2,082 --
-- 7,813 7,813 --
-- 4,681 4,681 --
-- 441 441 --
-- (7,487) (7,487) --
-- (833) (833) --
-- (328) (328) --
-- 3,900 5,900 --
-- (3,650) (3,650) --
-- 31,784 31,784 --
(142,887) 31,784 (111,103) --
(228)
33,570 -- 33,570 198
22,144 -- 22,144 --
1,825 -- 1,825 --
24,969 -- 24,969 --
7,039 12,937 19,976 11
268 #REF! #REF! --
(2,091 (6,602) (8,693) (6)
2,008 -- 2,008 101
599 (1,615 (1,016)

21,470 (21,470) -- --
111,801 #REF! #REF! 304
{31,086) #REF! #REF! 76
986,282 968,106 1,954,388 177

2,029 11,952 13,981 --
988,311 980,058 1,968,369 177
957,225 #REF! #REF! 3 253

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2008
(in thousands)

Primary Government Component Unit
Dovwntown
Governmental Business-type Improvement
Activities Activities Total Authority
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents................................. b 85454 % 169914 % 255,368 283
Securities Lending Collateral ............cccooee i, 15,487 30,648 46,135 51
Receivables:
Accrued Interest..........oooii i 881 1,834 2,715 3
Customers and Other.......................ol. 3,060 56,929 59,089 --
NOEES. .. v et et e e e 148 5177 5,325 --
Special Assessments........... e 325 -- 325 --
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts............. (616) (2,733 (3,349 --
Due from Other Govermments............................. 4257 2,830 7.087 --
Prepaid EXPenses......ococoovvieiii e -- 51,995 51,995 -
INVENMEOTY .o 300 47,679 47,979 --
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted................ 13,801 173,597 187,488 --
Investments - Restricted.....................co . 66,167 186,372 252,539 --
Securities Lending Collateral - Restricted.............. 14,427 59,940 74,367 --
Receivables - Restricted:
Accrued Interest..........oooii i 147 1,614 1,761 --
OThET. oo 138 7 145 --
NOLES. .. oo e e e 3,021 -- 3,021 --
Due from Other Govermments............................. 753 1,114 1.867 --
Total Current ASSets......coceenrverrrsrnesrnassareessnss 207,840 786,917 994,757 337
Noncurrent Assets
Internal Balances........coooeeveeieeveeee e 13,929 {13,929 -- --
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs..........ccoooeveeveveen. 812 7,998 8.810 --
Capital Assets
Land and Construction in Progress.................... 405,349 269,898 675,247 --
Other, Net of Accumulated Depreciation............ 503,905 078,245 1,482,150 --
Total Noncurrent ASSetS... i i nrsssssccrssans 023995 1,242,212 2,166,207 --
Total ASSES.ciciiriiniernrsnnsesessasreossssserssssssreronss $ 1,131,835 $ 2,029,129 $ 3,160,964 37

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
September 30, 2008

(in thousands)
Primary Government Component Unit
Dovwntown
Governmental Business-type Improvement
Activities Activities Total Authority
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Obligations Under Securities Lending ................. $ 15,487 % 30,648 $ 46,135 $ 51
Accounts Pavable. ... 10,374 70,221 80,595 17
Customer Contracts Payable................. -- 1,275 1,275 --
Utility Deposits Payable...............cocooiiii -- 19,244 19,244 -
Unearned REVENUE. ..o 2,700 5,298 7,998 --
Compensated Absences... 6,535 7713 14,248 2
Accounts Payable - Restricted 1,419 7,557 8.976 --
Obligations Under Securities Lending - Restricted 14,427 59,940 74,367 --
Unearned Revenue - Restricted............................. 670 -- 670 --
Bonds & Loans Payable - Current.......................... 4.275 15,174 19,449 --
Total Current Liabilities.........ccorevnveirersanaens 55,887 217,070 272,957 70
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated ADSENCES.........coocoovvevee e 2.461 3,839 6,300 10
Customer Contracts Payable................. -- 3,269 3.269 --
Claims Payable.........ooooiviii -- 9,454 9.454 --
Net OPEB Obligation...........ccooeev e 3,185 2,710 5,805 4
Bonds & Loans Payable................cccoooiiiii 110,060 787,251 897.311 --
Unamortized Bond Premium ... 3,017 12,453 15,470 --
Deferment of Loss on Early Retirement of Debt..... -- (2,450) (2,450) -
Total Noncurrent Liabilities.......ccoecircinnnees 118,723 816,526 935249 14
Total Liabilities... ..o innnsceessssrenasssesssssens 174,610 1,033,596 1,208,206 84
NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets, net of Related Debt...... 814,414 628,969 1,443,383 --

Restricted for. ..o
Capital Projects. .o 3,495 93,370 96,865 --
Debt Service. ..o 8,762 30,720 39,482 --
Other PUIPOSES......cvoeiee e 7,108 -- 7.108 --
Unrestricted.......cooooovoe oo 123,446 242,474 365,920 253
Total Net ASSELS..coeicinsiecessasrossassserssssssreronss 957,225 995,533 1,952,758 253
Total Liabilities and Net AssetS. .. e $ 1,131,835 $ 2,029,129 $ 3,160,964 % 337

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Apalachee Ridge Technology .earning Center
937 Kendall Drive
Tallahassee, FL 32304

March 10, 2010

The Honorable John R. Marks
City of Tallahassee

300 S. Adams Street
Tallahassee, FL 32301

Dear Mayor Marks,

It is with great zeal that T write this letter of support for the City of Tallahassee’s
Sustainable Broadband Adoption application to the National Telecommunications and
Information Administration through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act. The
Apalachee Ridge Technology Learning Center has seen closely the City's commitment to
technological advancement for all residents in Tallahassee. I believe that closing the
digital divide is possible and that education plus access will help us achieve our goals. So
does the City of Tallahassee and I am in total support of your efforts. Funding under this
act would help greatly improve our ability to provide the necessary broadband
infrastructure, access and education to our community. OQur center could continue the
work we have begun on Tallahassee's southside and beyond with a much greater impact.

If funding is allocated for this project the Apalachee Ridge Technology Learning Center
1s ready and willing to work the City of Tallahassee. We are prepared to mmplement
programs, provide internet access, create jobs and empower our community in a variety
of ways. We see a great benefit to the community at large if the City obtains these funds
and look forward to being a part of the process.

Sincerely,

Terrance D. McNeil
Director, ARTLC












	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_001.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_002.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_003.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_004.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_005.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_006.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_007.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_008.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_009.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_010.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_011.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_012.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_013.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_014.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_015.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_016.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_017.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_018.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_019.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_020.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_021.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_022.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_023.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_024.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_025.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_026.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_027.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_028.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_029.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_030.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_031.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_032.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_033.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_034.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_035.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_036.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_037.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_038.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_039.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_040.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_041.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_042.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_043.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_044.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_045.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_046.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_047.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_048.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_049.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_050.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_051.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_052.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_053.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_054.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_055.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_056.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_057.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_058.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_059.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_060.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_061.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_062.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_063.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_064.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_065.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_066.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_067.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_068.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_069.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_070.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_071.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_072.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_073.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_074.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_075.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_076.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_077.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_078.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_079.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_080.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_081.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_082.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_083.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_084.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_085.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_086.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_087.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_088.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_089.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_090.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_091.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_092.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_093.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_094.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_095.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_096.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_097.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_098.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_099.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_100.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_101.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_102.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_103.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_104.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_105.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_106.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_107.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_108.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_109.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_110.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_111.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_112.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_113.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_114.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_115.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_116.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_117.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_118.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_119.tif
	CityofTallahassee_SBA_Application_Attachments_Page_120.tif

